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Five year consolidated financial highlights
	 	 	 												

Restated##

For	the	financial	years	ended	
31	March	2020

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Statement	of	comprehensive	income
Turnover 79,892 77,951 74,072 74,513 72,386 
Depreciation 10,128 9,703 9,355 9,036 8,667 
Impairment / (reversal of Impairment) 283 (87) (17) 48 232 

Impairment on previously revalued amounts 116 108 338 300 1,607 

Impairment 399 21 321 348 1,839 

Operating Surplus 17,087 18,797 18,476 21,847 18,523 

Interest and financing costs (7,912) (8,947) (10,172) (11,409) (11,707)

Surplus after tax 9,331 10,786 7,991 9,706 7,214 

Statement	of	cashflows      

Cash flow from operating activities 24,372 26,820 27,693 30,541 31,528 

Cash flow from investing activities (19,465) (9,082) (8,741) (6,301) (12,788)

Cash flow from financing activities (3,634) (21,369) (7,395) (23,818) (18,536)

Net debt (229,673) (227,239) (236,750) (246,007) (259,154)

Statement	of	financial	position   

Tangible Fixed Assets 527,010 514,714 512,002 511,974 514,694 

Net Current Assets/(Liabilities) 4,415 (699) 5,280 1,362 (2,212)

Debt due after more than one year 232,367 228,203 246,036 251,454 260,843 

Pension Liabilities 11,228 10,589 10,478 12,374 8,586 

Revaluation reserve 154,100 156,059 158,136 160,548 162,569 

Other reserves 117,353 105,749 90,576 77,483 70,750 

Key	ratios	and	indicators
Operating margin 21% 24% 25% 29% 26%
Social housing operating margin 23% 24% 25% 29% 25%
Headline social housing cost per unit  5,244  5,077  4,800  4,541  4,664 
EBITDA % 259% 259% 228% 241% 204%
Interest cover % 344% 319% 274% 271% 232%

Net surplus as a % of turnover 12% 14% 11% 13% 10%
Gearing # 44% 45% 47% 51% 52%

# Gearing has been calculated on Net debt. Net debt is cash in hand, at bank and overdrafts, current asset investments, 

housing loans and finance leases. 

## Denotes restatement for FRS102 Development for sale reallocated from cash flow from operating activities to cash flow from 
investing activities.

## Denotes restatement for FRS102 Taxation reallocated from cash flow from financing to cash flow from operating

## EBITDA, CPU, Gearing and Reinvestment metrics for 2018/19 have been restated to align with the Global Accounts 2019.    
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Report of the board
The board presents its report and the audited consolidated 
financial statements of the Group and its subsidiary undertakings 
for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Strategic report 

Strategy and objectives

The Group’s vision is to have a positive impact on 
people and communities by providing high quality 
homes, supporting independence and creating 
opportunities. The Group Strategic Plan and Business 
Priorities is for the period 2020 to 2025 (“Strategic Plan”). 

We aim to create more homes, increase our support 
for independence and create more opportunities for 
our customers. All of these things are important and 
each one is closely related to the other. We remain 
committed to investing our surplus budget to deliver 
our strong social purpose. 

This business plan sets out our business priorities and 
include the following areas of focus.

 We will transform our approach to customers. Our 
person-centred approach will be the foundation 
for everything we do. We will work closely with 
our customers and partners to share and explore 
new ideas to shape a truly customer-focused 
organisation.

 We will transform our approach to development. 
Our priority lies in creating more homes. We will 
transform our approach to development so we can 
more than double our current output. By the end of 
the Strategic Plan period we hope to deliver more 
than 250 new homes each year.

 We aim to be a successful house builder. Concert 
Living will be firmly established as a successful, 
respected house builder. It will contribute to 
the Group’s development targets by providing 
a proportion of affordable homes and recycling 
significant profits back into the Group.

 We will continue to be a market leader in 
accommodation for people with a learning disability 
or autism. We will re-establish ourselves as a 

leading developer in this field. This will include 
closer working with commissioners, care providers 
and other housing providers, through opportunities 
like our new leasing product. We will completely 
review our approach to the management of 
supported living accommodation to ensure that 
we remain market leaders in terms of quality and 
customer service.

 We aim to continue to be a strategic provider 
of homeless support services and refuges in 
Lancashire. In the face of constant funding 
challenges, we will continue to provide 
accommodation and support for people 
experiencing homelessness and women and their 
families fleeing domestic violence. Given the very 
turbulent operating environment for services of this 
kind, growth opportunities are limited. Sustaining 
existing services will be the priority. Our aim is to 
become renowned as a committed provider of 
excellent services.

 Our Technology Enabled Care Services (TECS) 
service will establish a national reputation for 
innovation and customer service. It will double its 
current size by the end of the Strategic Plan period. 
We will aim to retain our high standard of service 
and accreditation throughout this substantial 
growth period.

 We will continue to improve performance. We will 
focus on improving performance on voids and 
arrears alongside an ongoing investment in our 
technology, infrastructure, staff and non-executive 
team. This will ensure we have the right equipment, 
skills and experience to deliver this Strategic Plan.

The first three strategic aims are more outward looking 
and are drawn directly from our vision:

 Providing more and better homes;
 Supporting individuals and communities to 

encourage independence; and
 Creating opportunities.
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Our approach

The final three strategic aims are more inward looking 
and are geared towards ensuring that we have a solid 
foundation on which to build our success:

 Working as one team;
 Developing a stronger organisation; and
 Putting customers at the heart of what we do. 

 
The Strategic Plan sets out the priorities and 
outcomes and there are a number of measures 
the board will use to monitor achievement of these 
priorities. These priorities are a combination of short, 
medium and long term requirements of our business 
and can be seen in the table below:

Business model

Progress Housing Group Limited believes that 
everyone has the right to a decent place to live 
and the core objective is to further this principle 
by playing our part in ensuring that our customers 
have a good quality home in a welcoming and safe 
community with excellent services. We operate 
within the housing market and offer a wide range of 
accommodation and services to a diverse customer 
base, as detailed below. The Group owns and 
manages over 10,000 tenancies across England and 
Scotland. We also provide social alarm services to our 
housing customers and to external organisations and 
individuals.

In addition to Progress Housing Association 
Limited, the Group includes New Progress Housing 
Association Limited, a dormant company that has no 
plans to operate. Progress Housing Group Limited 
(the Parent), together with Key Unlocking Futures 
Limited, which is a charity registered with the Charity 
Commission, and Concert Living Limited, which is a 
company delivering outright property sales.

Our range of accommodation types and customers 
across the Group include:

General needs

We own and manage 4,934 social and affordable 
homes to rent so that more people have the 
opportunity to rent a home for themselves and their 
family. We mainly operate within South Ribble and 
Fylde area of the North West of England but also 
include Cumbria, Skipton, Accrington, Chorley and 
Blackpool. Our customer base mainly comprises 
single person households and families. Services 
provided to general needs tenants include a caretaker 
service, community housing officer and support from 
the Financial Inclusion Team.

The Group provides 35 units of interim 
accommodation to accommodate people who have 
been presented as homeless by the local councils. 
This is short term accommodation provided whilst 
suitable alternative property can be identified.

Supported living

We are one of the largest providers of specialist 
supported housing in England, primarily providing 
accommodation for people with a learning disability or 
mental health needs. Our reputation for delivering and 
supporting the aims of local authority commissioners 
and NHS Trusts has contributed to our continued 
growth.
 
We currently provide around 3,150 units of specialist 
accommodation in 103 local authority areas. Care and 
support is provided to our tenants by more than 100 
different support agencies appointed by local authority 
or NHS Trust commissioners. We have a number of 
models of accommodation including shared houses, 
flats and bungalows that make up around 80% of our 
supported housing stock as well as self-contained 
accommodation and shared ownership. Our 
strategy is to increase the amount of self-contained 
accommodation we provide to meet the needs and 
aspirations of our tenants. 

Our focus for new developments continues in our 
core areas of the North West, Yorkshire, Midlands, 
Buckinghamshire and East Anglia.
 

Report of the board continued
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Progress Housing Association Limited holds a 
one third share in a joint venture company, Leeds 
Independent Living Accommodation Holdings 
Limited. This is a private finance initiative with Leeds 
City Council to provide 344 units of supported living 
accommodation to customers with a range of needs 
across multiple sites around Leeds. This joint venture 
has two other partners in the consortium, Jack Lunn 
(Properties) Limited and Civic PFI Investments. The 
PFI continues to perform well.

Independent living

We provide affordable and easy to manage homes 
for people over the age of 55 who want to live 
independently but without the responsibility of owning 
their own home. The independent living service differs 
to those provided to general needs housing as it 
includes support from a scheme coordinator and 
handyperson, in-built social alarms that are connected 
to our 24-hour control centre with out-of-hours 
emergency response team, and a communal space 
for social activities. Repairs are carried out by our 
Property Services Team. 

We have 30 schemes providing 1,255 properties in 
the Fylde and South Ribble areas of Lancashire. Our 
service is tailored to the needs of the tenants and 
range from daily personal visits, (Monday to Friday) 
to a weekly intercom call, or disclaimer if mutually 
agreed between the tenant and coordinator. We have 
extra care facilities in two of our schemes, where 
we work alongside a local care provider who will 
provide personal care to those tenants who require it 
through their own personalised care budgets. Future 
development opportunities are always on the horizon, 
especially with the introduction of digital services to 
provide more advanced technology services such 
as Telecare and Smart Technology in our schemes. 
The schemes enjoy a Wi-Fi communal space and 
use technology such as Alexa as part of their social 
activities.

Supported housing

Supported housing provides short term 
accommodation and support to vulnerable client 
groups such as homeless people, young people at 
risk of homelessness and women and their children 
escaping domestic abuse. We have a total of 51 units 
of accommodation – 18 for young homeless people 
in Chorley, 22 for homeless people in Preston and 11 
for women and children escaping domestic abuse in 
South Ribble and Chorley. The average length of stay 
in supported housing is three months but can be as 
short as a few days or up to two years. 

Shared ownership 

The Group provides accommodation where 
customers can purchase between 25% and 75% of 
their home and rent the remaining equity from the 
Group. We have 177 shared ownership properties 
with 25 for supported living customers. These 
properties have a retained value of £9 million and 
have been developed since 2006. The Group has not 
been financially reliant on shared ownership sales to 
achieve a surplus. Our future strategy includes further 
development of this property type.

Key worker accommodation

Progress Housing Association Limited (PHA) 
manages accommodation in partnership with United 
Lincolnshire Hospitals Trust (ULHT) at Lincoln, 
Boston and Grantham. The scheme is within PHA 
but operates under the trading name of Progress 
Living. This arrangement was established as a Public 
Private Partnership (PPP). A PPP is a long-term 
contract between a private party and a government 
entity, for providing a public asset or service, in 
which the private party bears significant risk and 
management responsibility, and remuneration is linked 
to performance. Specifically, it has been established 
on the basis of a lease of land (by ULHT to PHA), 
upon which the Group has built (or refurbished) 
accommodation and operates the accommodation for 
an agreed lease term, after which the buildings and 
land revert to ULHT.  

Report of the board continued
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Key Unlocking Futures Limited

Key Unlocking Futures Limited (Key) is a charity with 
the mission to help people build better lives. The 
charity provides flexible person-centred services to 
a range of clients across Lancashire. The services 
include drop-ins for homeless young people, family 
conflict resolution, family support, tenancy support, 
pre-tenancy training, employment coaching and 
young victims support. Key employs 15 full time staff 
and casual workers to provide these services. Key 
shares the overall Group vision, it is not a registered 
landlord and has its own mission, values and business 
plan. Funding of the charity is received from a number 
of short term contracts with local authorities.
 

Progress Lifeline and technology 
enabled care services (TECS)

Progress Lifeline (which provides telecare and 
technology enabled care and services) has recently 
completed a successful audit by the Telecare Services 
Association’s (TSA) for the new Quality Standards 
Framework. This confirms for the 13th year our 
commitment to providing the highest quality standards 
for our services. The Progress Lifeline service has 
been delivering services for over 30 years and is a 
lead provider for telecare referrals and assessments, 
installation and call monitoring in Lancashire. The 
service offers a wide range of technology and 
services, including an integrated falls lifting and 
emergency responder service in both Lancashire 
and Yorkshire.  Progress Lifeline has a dedicated call 
response centre based in Leyland, Lancashire which 
is staffed 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. It provides 
over 35,000 customers with 24-hour emergency 
assistance and handles over 823,000 calls annually. 

We also exceeded growth projections and generated 
in excess of £5.3m per annum in turnover for the 
Group in 2019/20 an increase of £1.0m which is 22% 
from 2018/19.These services generate surpluses 
which help us to cross subsidise and contribute to our 
future development of new homes. 

Principal risks and uncertainties

In our 2025 Strategic Plan we have set out the priorities,
related measures and targets under each of our six 
strategic aims. As part of this, we consider business 
planning and risk assessment as complementary. It is 
vital the board assess the risks that affect the Group’s 
ability to meet its key objectives. The increasing 
importance of housing in the political agenda exposes 
the organisation to political, statutory and regulatory 
risks. Our board continuously monitors risks and how 
these will impact the financial position of the Group 
through its long term financial plan modelling. 

Risk is considered at each board meeting and an 
updated strategic risk register has been presented 
to the board on a quarterly basis. A strategic risk 
assurance map has been presented to the Audit 
Committee and is subject to regular reviews and 
updates. 

The Group undertakes extensive stress testing both 
annually (as part of the long-term financial plan update) 
and when the need arises throughout the year. Detailed 
mitigating strategies have been developed to ensure we 
are best placed to respond to a risk should it crystallise. 
Our long-term financial plans contain a number of 
assumptions, such as inflation, interest rates and unit 
sales. The planning model, and our assumptions, are 
based on current information and are validated by a 
third party review where possible.

Report of the board continued
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Report of the board continued
The table below details what current risks the board considers we face and how we mitigate and control them.

Strategic 
Objective

Risk Mitigation and Controls

Developing 
a stronger 
organisation

The rent inflation to 2025 is CPI + 
1%, then CPI thereafter. 
The risks could be that inflation 
increases but so may Libor, or 
in light of Brexit and coronavirus 
(COVID-19) the government may 
make changes to this which may 
impact upon our rental income. 
In addition in previous years, 
rents were not linked to CPI and 
therefore not increased. 

Our long-term financial plans will be updated in summer 
2020 to reflect and manage any changes due to 
COVID-19. Stress testing - which considers changes in 
inflation rates is undertaken. Rents are linked to CPI as per 
the rent standard in the financial year. Information from our 
treasury advisors indicates that CPI will hover around the 
2% level over the next five years.

Developing 
a stronger 
organisation

The ability for our general needs, 
supported living and independent 
living customers to pay their rent 
as a consequence of welfare 
reform changes. 

Bad debts and voids will reflect the current position in the 
budget year. The Group monitors customers on Universal 
Credit and whilst the numbers are currently low COVID-19 
could impact.

We stress test the impact of a loss of 50% of our void 
recharge income, which we receive for many supported 
living schemes and our interim accommodation. 

To ensure our plans are robust we will test an increase 
in bad debts & voids by 5% (from year 2 of the plans) in 
aggregate lasting for 10 years, with a loss of 50% of void 
recharge income.

Providing more 
and better 
homes

The government has expressed 
their expectation that Registered 
Providers will contribute to the 
increase of housing supply across 
the country. If development for 
sale activity due to COVID-19 
fails to generate the anticipated 
revenue, causes the Group to 
lose money or results in excessive 
numbers of unsold units this 
could have an impact on the 
Group’s ability to develop social 
housing properties.

A number of tests have been devised to assess the 
impacts on the long term financial plans.
The impact of COVID-19 on developers activity is 
monitored. A stress test of a fall of open market values 
of 30% for shared ownership units in Progress Housing 
Association and outright sales in Concert Living Limited 
will give us assurance against major house price crashes. 
This links to Bank of England stress tests.

Additionally for Concert Living we test the impact of a six 
months sales delay. Other stress tests in Concert Living 
include a reduction in sales values and the impact on 
converting units into affordable rent should we struggle to 
sell.
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Report of the board continued

Strategic 
Objective

Risk Mitigation and Controls

Support 
individuals and 
communities 
to achieve 
independence

If the Group does not have 
adequate arrangements to 
comply with new statutory H&S 
requirements, or to respond 
effectively and efficiently to a 
H&S incident this would have 
a significant impact on our 
reputation and ability to continue 
to deliver its services.

The Group is at all times committed to the highest 
levels of controls to ensure the health and safety of its 
customers, staff and the public. We have considered 
the tragic events at Grenfell Tower and as part of its 
regulatory engagement has confirmed that we do not own 
or manage any buildings clad in an Aluminium Composite 
Material (ACM), nor any buildings higher than 18 metres. 
A Health and Safety Business Continuity Working Party 
has reviewed preventative and responsive actions and 
the board takes an active role in reviewing and managing 
health and safety governance arrangements.

We have invoked the Group’s Business Continuity Plan to 
deal with the COVID-19 crisis. We monitor the availability 
of plant, property and equipment and the impact on 
property compliance due to tenants self-isolating or 
shielding.

Develop a 
stronger 
organisation

A major fraud driven by COVID-19 
could have a negative impact on 
the Group's reputation and ability 
to comply with RSH Standards.

We have a broad range of mechanisms of internal 
controls, policies and procedures in place. 

As a result of COVID-19, changes to internal control 
environment log have been established which is being 
regularly updated and monitored.

Increased communication to staff to raise awareness 
of fraud risks.
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Brexit

The UK left the EU on 31st December 2019 and is 
currently in transition with future trading relationships 
yet to be finalized. A number of talks are being held 
and an outcome has been promised to be delivered 
by December 2020. We have assessed the individual 
risks it faces as a result of Brexit and have concluded 
that none of those risks will have a significant impact. 
However it recognises that cumulatively the various 
scenarios could have unforeseen impacts. Work has 
been undertaken to stress test those scenarios and 
ensure that mitigating strategies are in place. Regular 
reports have been presented to the board to ensure 
they have been kept up-to-date with our Brexit 
preparation.

Covid-19 Update to long-term financial 
planning

The Group’s latest long term financial plans are being 
updated due to impacts to the Group from COVID-19. 
This revision was needed due to impacts to the Group 
from the coronavirus pandemic. It is expected that the 
housing market will be affected and therefore may
impact upon our sales income and ability to sell stock 
quickly. Impairment is a key assumption reviewed 
in the long term financial plan. Other factors for 
consideration include increased bad debts and 
voids levels. The stress testing will be completed to 
ensure that the plans could cope with the worst case 
scenarios. The key strategy remains to maintain the 
Group’s financial strength whilst being able to respond 
to economic and political change and continue to 
deliver quality services to customers. The stress 
testing pushes plan to the point at which it breaks, 
either through solvency or liquidity problems. The plan 
includes a number of mitigating strategies that have 
been identified and continuously developed to ensure 
we are resilient. From the review, it is clear that the 
Group is in a strong position, and has a number of 
mitigating strategies in place.

Treasury management

The Group operates under the Group’s Treasury 
Management function led by the Executive Director 
(Finance and Corporate Services). Advice is also 
received from the Group’s financial and corporate 
advisers, who review the Treasury Management Policy 
and Strategy annually. The primary objective of the 
Treasury Management Strategy is the provision of 
financial resources necessary to achieve its purpose 
and the management of associated risks, financial 
and operational, that might threaten its ability to do 
so. The Treasury Management function is not a profit 
centre however it is committed to the principles of 
achieving value for money in Treasury Management, 
and to employ suitable measurement techniques, 
within the context of effective risk management. 

We have sufficient liquidity in place to meet at least 
the next 18 months’ requirements, 18 months liquidity 
is a requirement of the Regulator. As at 31 March 
2020, Progress Housing Association Limited has 
secured loan facilities totalling £271 million of which 
£237 million is drawn facilities.

Corporate governance

The Group has adopted the National Housing 
Federation’s Code of Governance (published in 
2015) and continues to comply with both this and 
best practice with regards to corporate governance. 
In line with the Group’s governance arrangements, 
compliance against the code is reviewed on an annual 
basis and reported to the Group’s Remuneration and 
Nominations Committee. 

The Regulator of Social Housing’s Governance 
Standard requires that the Group adopts an 
appropriate code and reports any variation on a 
“comply or explain” basis; this statement is therefore 
part of the Group’s regulatory compliance. Following 
our review of our compliance against the NHF 2015 
Code of Governance the Group has concluded that 
the Group remains compliant with the provisions of 
the code.

Report of the board continued
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Governance structure

The The Progress Housing Group Limited parent board
has overall responsibility for setting the strategic 
direction of the Group through the corporate business
plan and maintaining control of the Group’s governance
and compliance. The framework of control provides 
the structure of governance within the Group and 
includes the Intra-Group Agreement, Standing Orders 
and Scheme of Delegation, Financial Regulations and 
through the Group’ s adopted policies and procedures. 
 
Progress Housing Group Limited (the Parent) is the 
non-charitable parent registered with the Financial 
Conduct Authority. Progress Housing Association 
Limited is a charitable registered provider, a Community 
Benefit Society and registered with the Financial 
Conduct Authority. It has a common board of 
management with Progress Housing Group Limited.

Key Unlocking Futures Limited is a registered charity 
and is not a registered provider. It has a separate 
Board of Trustees to the registered providers. A 
Grouping Deed joins Key Unlocking Futures Limited 
into the Group’s governance structure. 

Concert Living Limited is a company with the primary 
purpose of developing homes for open market sale 
in order to generate a profit, which will be used to 
financially support the Group’s core activities, including 
sub-market rented accommodation. Concert Living 
is a wholly owned company funded by shares, and is 
joined to the Group by a Procedure Agreement. 
 
The Group has a number of sub-committees which 
have delegated authority in a number of areas. Each 
sub-committee has terms of reference which are 
approved by the parent board. The composition of 
each sub-committee and a brief overview of its role is 
set out below. 

Audit Committee
 
The committee membership is up to five Non-Executive 
directors, with no more than 3 having independent 
status. The committee has responsibility for oversight 
of the financial reporting process, approval of 
accounting policies, the system of internal control, 
providing assurance to the board over the design and 
operation of the risk management framework, and the 
internal and external audit processes.

Remuneration and Nominations 
Committee
 
The committee membership is up to five Non-Executive 
directors, with no more than two having independent 
status. The committee has responsibility for setting 
the remuneration policy for staff and the board and 
other policies as delegated by the Parent. In addition, 
the committee oversees the appraisal of the Group 
Chief Executive, and recommends to the board of 
the Parent the Chief Executive’s remuneration for 
approval. The committee also oversees the process 
of non-executive director appraisal and makes 
recommendations for appointments to the board.

As part of the setting of the remuneration for the 
Group, the committee reviews pay awards annually. 
Consideration is given to benchmarking, pay ratios 
and the annual gender pay gap report as part of the 
process. 

Executive Board 
 
The membership of the Executive Board consists 
of the executive management team and meets on 
at least a quarterly basis. The board oversees a 
number of policies and procedures as delegated 
by the Parent, receives operational performance 
and management information, oversees operational 
risk management and compliance and acts as the 
development sub-committee for the registered 
provider. 

Report of the board continued
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Concert Living Limited 
 
In line with the business plan agreed by the Parent, 
two non-executive directors from Progress Housing 
Group Limited serve on the board of Concert Living. 
In addition, the Group Chief Executive and Executive 
Director (Finance & Corporate Services) are members 
of the board in addition to two independent non-
executive directors (one of whom acts as Chair). 

Directors
 
The names of the non-executive directors and the 
independent members who have served during the 
year are shown on Page 1 and the board would like to 
thank them all for their support and continued interest 
in the work of the Group.

Statement of internal control 

The board has overall responsibility for establishing 
and maintaining the whole system of internal control 
and for reviewing its effectiveness. This applies for all 
subsidiaries within the Group. 

The board recognises that no system of internal 
control can provide absolute assurance or eliminate 
all risk. The system of internal control is designed to 
manage risk and provide reasonable assurance that 
key business objectives and expected outcomes 
will be achieved, that assets are safeguarded, that 
transactions are authorised and properly recorded, 
and that material errors or irregularities are either 
prevented or would be detected within a timely period. 

In meeting its responsibilities, the board has adopted 
a risk-based approach to internal controls, which 
are embedded within the normal management and 
governance processes. This approach includes the 
regular evaluation of the nature and extent of risks to 
which the Group is exposed and is consistent with 
best practice.

The key features of the Group’s system of internal 
controls include the following:

  The Group has adopted the National Housing 
Federation’s Code of Governance (Key Unlocking 
Futures Limited operate to the Charity Governance 
Code for smaller charities, and Concert Living 
Limited operates to the UK Corporate Governance 
Code). The board has implemented a framework 
of self-assessment and performance management. 

  Rules, Standing Orders and Scheme of Delegation, 
intra-group agreements and Financial Regulations 
were all reviewed in 2018/19 as part of the 
Group Combination project (which saw three of 
the Group’s RP subsidiaries combine into one) 
and continue to meet legal, regulatory and good 
practice requirements. 

  A structured systematic approach has been 
taken in response to the changing operating 
environment, which the Group has continued to 
closely monitor. Individual service areas continue 
to be monitored to ensure they are sufficiently 
resourced to deliver their operational plans and 
business strategies. 

  The Group has appointed employees, consultants 
and Non-Executive Directors with the required 
specialist skills to ensure it has the requisite skills 
to undertake specific business activities. 

  The board confirms that there is an on-going 
process for identifying, evaluating and managing 
significant risks faced by the Group. This process 
has been in place throughout the year under 
review and the board approved an updated Risk 
Strategy (including risk appetite statement) in 
March 2020. As well as a strategic level risk map 
(which is maintained by the board), a SMT level 
risk map and individual operational risk maps are in 
place and regularly reviewed. 

  All decisions being made by the board are 
supported with an analysis of the risks involved. 
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  New risk management software has been 
purchased and implementation is underway which 
will further enhance risk management processes. 

  A robust framework of financial planning, scenario 
modelling and stress testing is in place to assess 
and mitigate strategic risks. The framework is also 
used to assess risks associated with potential new 
areas of business. 

  The Group’s insurance portfolio has been subject 
to its annual review to confirm that cover remains 
up to date and fit for purpose. An independent 
audit has been carried out of insurance and a high 
level of assurance was achieved with no findings 
being made. 

  The Group has updated their internal audit 
universe and associated assurance map, covering 
the Group’s critical services, strategic risks, and 
other areas that contribute to the achievement of 
the Group’s strategic objectives. This has enabled 
the production of a risk based internal audit plan, 
focussing on the areas of most importance to the 
Group. 

  The Audit Committee has delegated authority 
from the board to approve and monitor the 
delivery of the internal risk based audit plan, 
consider any control weaknesses, approve 
management actions and review follow up work 
on implementation of audit recommendations. The 
committee meets independently with internal and 
external auditors to seek additional assurance on 
the robustness of control systems. 

  The Audit Committee has received regular reports 
during the year with regard to any proposed 
significant changes to accounting policies and 
estimates affecting the accounts.

  BDO UK LLP identified control weaknesses in 
2019 during their external audit work and this 
was reported to the July 2019 audit committee 
meeting where increased levels of payment 
controls were suggested. This is on the audit plan 
for 2020/21 to review those controls and carry out 
a further internal audit review. Financial reporting 
procedures include detailed budgets for the 
year ahead and forecasts for subsequent years. 
These are reviewed and approved by the board. 
The board reviews the management accounts 
each quarter, which highlights and explains any 

significant budget variances. The board also 
regularly reviews key performance indicators to 
assess progress towards the achievement of key 
business objectives, targets and outcomes.

  The Group has in place a Raising Concerns at 
Work policy, as well as a dedicated whistleblowing 
page on its website. Details of identified frauds are 
maintained in a fraud register which is reviewed 
quarterly by the Audit Committee on behalf of the 
board, prior to being submitted to the regulator 
through the annual return process.

  All staff are appointed on the basis of robust 
selection and recruitment processes, with 
comprehensive induction and training programmes.

  The board retains responsibility for a defined 
range of issues covering strategic, operational, 
financial and compliance issues and new 
investment projects. The board has adopted and 
disseminated the Group’s Code of Governance to 
all employees. This sets out the Group’s policies 
with regard to the quality, integrity and ethics of 
its employees, including non-executive directors 
and engaged customers. It is supported by a 
framework of policies and procedures with which 
employees must comply.

  The Performance Review and Development 
Process has continued to guide and assist staff 
and managers on how to effectively manage 
performance. 

 
In addition to the above, the board has continued 
to receive a quarterly compliance statement (which 
identifies areas of non-compliance in the areas of 
legal, regulation, finance, health and safety and 
policies) throughout the year. 

In February 2020, the Group was regraded to G2 
which is a compliant governance grade whilst retaining 
its V1 viability grade.  The board had identified a health 
and safety property compliance issue and appointed 
an independent specialist company to work with the 
Group to implement an action plan. The board 
self-reported to the Regulator of Social Housing 
during the course of the In Depth Assessment. 
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COVID-19

The Group are currently operating under the guidance 
provided by Public Health England, NHS and the 
World Health Organisation (WHO) and this has 
resulted in the majority of staff working from home. 
The internal control framework is likely to be affected 
by this and will be assessed by Internal Audit over the 
coming months. The 2020/21 internal audit plan was 
derived using the risk universe, feedback from audit 
committee and high risk areas but will be able to be 
conducted remotely by Internal Audit. 

The Group Chief Executive has reviewed the internal 
control and assurance arrangements by reference to 
the above and has reported to the board that, with 
the exception of the issue referred to the regulator, 
she is satisfied with the effectiveness of the control 
systems. The Audit Committee has also expressed its 
satisfaction with these arrangements in its review of 
the effectiveness of internal control systems (assisted 
by the Internal Audit Annual Assurance Statement). 
Through the work undertaken by the committee, it can 
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, there have 
been no significant weaknesses in controls resulting 
in material losses, contingencies or uncertainties, 
which would have required disclosure in the financial 
statements.

Environmental, employee, 
social and community matters

Environment

The Group undertakes a variety of initiatives to help 
tackle fuel poverty amongst residents, which includes 
upgrades to windows and doors and the installation 
of fuel efficient heating systems. Photovoltaic panels 
have been installed which service 388 properties. 
The Group has reinstalled cavity wall insulation to 372 
properties at a cost of £546k, 100% funding has been 
received for this work. All properties already meet the 
Decent Homes Standard, therefore these initiatives 
help reduce energy usage. The Group is currently 
consulting the Board and developing a carbon 

reduction strategy to further enhance the performance 
of the stock and help the customers reduce their 
consumption. The Group is modelling inclusion costs 
of decarbonisation in its long term financial plans.

Employee engagement 

The Group continues to engage employees through 
a number of mechanisms. In early 2019 we launched 
our first pulse survey which provided a wealth of 
information.  It is evident that employees are proud 
to work for the Group, feel a connection to their work 
and the customers we serve. Investors in People 
conducted an assessment of the Group at the 
beginning of April 2020 as part of a three-year review 
and we are pleased to say that we were successful
in retaining the ‘we invest in people standard’. 
The assessment was also an opportunity for 
colleagues to share their feelings about how the
organisation has responded to the COVID-19 pandemic,
with a number of people commenting on how everyone 
has pulled together and how the organisation has 
made good use of employees’ skills and knowledge 
across the Group. Employees have appreciated the 
open and honest response from the organisation as 
well as regular communication and offer of support. 
We firmly believe that our colleagues are the greatest 
resource we have. By working together as one team 
we will be stronger, achieve more and deliver what our 
customers really want and need.
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Gender pay reporting 

Our gender pay position is reported each year and 
gender pay is embedded into the Group’s equality 
and diversity agenda and People Strategy. Measures 
include reviewing whether our recruitment is from a 
sufficiently diverse mix of candidates, ensuring our 
flexible working opportunities are available for all, 
supporting parental leave and returners and reviewing 
our career development opportunities for all employees.

Customer involvement

Putting customers at the heart of what we do to ensure 
our decisions are driven by customer needs and 
aspirations, is one of our key strategic aims. We aim to 
ensure that everything we do delivers great results for 
customers and we have committed to ensuring that our 
customers influence service standards and business
decisions. Our recent focus has therefore been on gaining
a better insight into what matters most to our customers
via our community engagement and scrutiny work. We 
have used customer insight gained from the triennial 
STAR survey to identify priorities for our customers. 

The information taken from the STAR survey told us 
that we had four recurring themes:

  First time resolution – Be friendly answer questions 
- keep promises

  Speed - this is not about doing it quickly it is about 
giving timescales

  Inform & Communicate – give timescales and keep 
the customer informed

  Quality - Set expectations

Overall satisfaction was good with areas for improvement 
recognised. We also recognised our key drivers for
change. These are the items which have high importance
and slightly lower satisfaction. Our key drivers for change are: 

  Dealing with repairs and maintenance
  Listening to views and acting upon them
  Quality of our home

We are building an action plan around the key
drivers and reoccurring themes to drive forward
improvement with services.

Our Scrutiny Pool undertakes specific service reviews 
to understand the customer experience and focuses 
on improving customer satisfaction and strengthening 
value for money. Throughout the year we continued 
to support the capacity of the scrutiny pool, with an 
independent advisor supporting them. 

For the year there have been a number of mystery 
shopping calls, void inspections, estate appearance 
inspections and mystery shopping web chats carried 
out and reported on. 

We have seen a worsening performance this year 
relating to the number of complaints responded 
to within timescale. This has largely been due to 
a change in staff and working arrangements and 
is an important area of focus for the Group in the 
forthcoming year where we expect performance to 
improve following further training for staff.

We aim to create opportunities for all our customers 
and one of the ways we do this is through our Progress 
Futures initiative. This is a free service that helps many 
tenants and their family members to access training 
or education and to improve employment prospects.  
The team adopts a person-centred approach to work 
with each individual to help them achieve their own 
personal goal in terms of entering training, education, 
volunteering or employment. 

During the year we were successful in securing £74k in 
European funding (ESIF) for the More Positive Together 
Project (MPT) (2018/19: £100k).

More Positive Together is a Lancashire wide 
programme that aims to increase the skills and 
employment prospects of those furthest away from 
the Labour market. We undertake projects which 
have clear aims to create opportunities and support 
customers of the Group. The Furniture Futures service 
is now live and has seen an influx of donations from 
staff and tenants. The service has been well received 
by tenants in need of essential items of furniture. The 
“digital passport” project has been contractually signed 
off and a project delivery plan is being developed.
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Business performance

Financial performance for the year

Our financial performance for the year continues to be 
strong. Turnover increased by £1.9m or 2%, due to a 
£1.0m increase in rental income and Progress Lifeline 
income £0.9m. Operating costs increased by £4.1m 
or 7% mainly due to increased Progress Lifeline costs 
of £1.3m due to mobilisation costs on new contracts, 
increased expenditure from social housing lettings 
£1.7m, impacted by an impairment review in the year 
of £0.4m and depreciation £0.4m and increased 
management employee costs for key worker 
accommodation as a result of new contracts £0.3m. 
Cost of sales has decreased by £0.4m, a direct result 
of reduced levels of shared ownership sales activity. 
Our operating surplus stood at £17.0m compared to 
£18.8m last year. The surplus after tax decreased by 
£1.4m to £9.3m.

The surplus on cash flow from operating activities
was £24.3m. 

Net tangible fixed assets increased by £12.3m to 
£527m. The Group’s share of the pension fund deficit 
for both the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS) and Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS) 
is £11.2m. Reserves increased by £9.6m due to the 
surplus made in the year and movements in pension 
liabilities through other comprehensive income. The 
Group had £271m net assets at the end of the year. 

The Group is not for profit, our entire surplus has 
been, or will be reinvested to run and improve our 
services. Our total comprehensive income has 
continued to be steady in the year, meaning we can 
continue to invest in new homes, maintain existing 
homes and manage our liabilities. An overview of our 
financial picture showing total investment along with 
financing can be seen as:

The charts above show that our annual surplus is 
one part of the financing of our properties. Surpluses 
from our social and non-social housing activities are 
used to service debt and strengthen reserves, which 
enables us to have capacity to develop more homes 
and maintain our existing properties. Reductions 
in grant rates over the last few years have placed 
constraints on capacity but we have continued to 
increase our operating cash flows and reduce our 
gearing levels.
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Key performance indicators

The Group has a performance management 
framework that underpins its vision and strategic aims 
identified within its Strategic Plan. This ensures that 
we have a robust process in place to capture and 
report on all elements of VFM within the business 
including cost, performance and effectiveness 
measures. We have built a balanced scorecard 
methodology which assesses performance against 
financial, customer and communities, learning 
and growth and operating process targets. Our 
performance for this year and how we compare with 
others is detailed within our VFM position statement 
which can be found on the Group’s website.

The Group’s underlying financial performance is within 
target and demonstrates our financial strength and 
resilience. The loan covenant indicators including 
interest cover and gearing and show a strong position 
over time. We are compliant with all loan covenants. 
For a full list of our performance indicators and our 
current performance against target please visit the 
Group’s website www.progressgroup.org.uk.

Growth and development

In 2019/20 a target of delivering 141 homes was 
set. Against this target we achieved delivery of 91, 
which equates to 65% of target, there was a portfolio 
of properties the Group was to acquire but due 
to COVID-19 has been deferred. Delivery during 
the year was supported by the ongoing Homes 
England Continuous Market Engagement 2016-21 
grant funding programme. This supported delivery 
of 29 units during the year. An additional 57 units 
were delivered through s106 planning gain. 1 new 
supported living unit was brought into the organisation 
whilst 4 new tenancies were delivered in a supported 
living property that was acquired by the Group and 
then leased to a care provider. 

We continue in our efforts to scale up our 
development of supported living accommodation 
(which falls within the long term accommodation 
category), given the abandonment of the LHA cap 
and the Government’s assurances around long term 
funding for this type of accommodation. A strong 
future pipeline has been identified.

The Government has announced an extension of 
the existing Homes England Continuous Market 
Engagement 2016-21 programme in the March 
2020 budget, but full details of this extension are still 
awaited. We continue to actively engage with Homes 
England and expect to be able to continue to access 
funding to support our general needs development 
programme in the future through this route, to enable 
the targets within the development strategy to be 
achieved in the future.

The long lead in nature of development activity means 
that it takes time to create the necessary inertia 
to identify opportunities, secure planning, acquire 
sites, undertake construction and achieve practical 
completion of new homes. A healthy future pipeline of
schemes that fit with the strategy has been identified 
across a number of different procurement and delivery 
routes and this will continue to be developed.  

Value for Money (VFM)

Value for Money (VFM) underpins the delivery of the 
Group’s vision and our key strategic aims, as shown 
in the Group’s Strategic Plan. A comprehensive 
assessment of VFM for the year has been carried 
out by the board and Executive Team. This gives 
our stakeholders a rounded picture of how we have 
performed against our VFM targets for 2019/20, 
how we have progressed since last year and how we 
intend to deliver VFM in the future. We report on the 
metrics prescribed by the Regulator of Social Housing 
(RSH) in its VFM Standard 2018. We also report on 
some of our own, additional metrics. 

We are confident that we have complied with this VFM 
Standard in full. The board is committed to ensuring 
that VFM is embedded in both our culture and our 
decision-making processes.

We	achieve	this	by:
  Setting the overall strategic direction and culture 

of the Group, and recognising how important it is 
to maximise VFM in order to deliver our strategic 
aims;
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  Approving the VFM Strategy and overseeing its 
implementation;

  Having a dedicated VFM and Performance 
Working Party in place to implement strategy and 
ensure compliance;

  Scrutinising and approving major business 
proposals including cost/benefit/risk analysis 
arising from those proposals;

  Approving key strategies and ensuring that VFM 
has been considered throughout;

  Including VFM targets within the Plan;
  Setting high performance targets and monitoring 

business performance closely. We do this by 
benchmarking against our peer group, which 
enables the board to challenge the organisation to 
do more;

  Reviewing progress against the Plan to ensure 
that the business is continuously improving and 
achieving more;

  Identifying the VFM activities on our VFM action 
tracker;

  Publishing our compliance with the VFM Standard 
by the deadline of 30 September 2020.

Our Plan is structured around our six strategic aims. 
The first three are outward looking and are drawn 
directly from our vision. The final three are more 
inward looking and focus on making sure we have a 
solid foundation on which to build our future success.

We have six strategic aims which are Homes, 
Independence, Opportunities, One Team – Working 
Together Customers at the Heart and Stronger 
Organisation.

The Plan contains our business priorities and the plans 
to achieve them. We believe that by achieving these 
factors, we will be able to deliver the Plan. VFM is a 
cross-cutting theme running through all six strategic 
aims and is essential to their delivery. Maximising VFM 
in our activities will enable us to realise our ambitions 
and we set this out in our annual VFM Strategy.

Executive summary 
- our achievements 2019/20

Alongside our core social housing business we 
deliver a number of other services which although 
complementary, do not fall within the social housing 
category. Our business operates with both social 
and non-social activities. Our social housing activities 
include the provision of homes for general needs, 
independent living and supported living customers. 
Our non-social housing activities include key worker 
accommodation, Technology Enabled Care and 
Support (TECS) services, and the development of 
properties for outright sale. 

In addition to ensuring that our activities deliver VFM 
for Progress Housing Group, we also seek to deliver 
value to the benefit of the wider community and the 
public purse. One example is the work we do with 
adult social care commissioners to increase the quality 
of life and reduce the cost of social care for thousands 
of older people through the use of technology.

Our VFM targets were ambitious and stretching. Here 
are some examples.

  Approved spend of £138 million over the five years 
to 2024/25 to provide 1,058 new units across a 
balanced programme of supported living, general 
needs, section 106 and shared ownership. 

  For 2019/20 we spent £18.1m which was slightly 
under our target of £19m. We delivered 91 new 
rental streams consisting of, 72 general needs and 
14 shared ownership properties. Of these units, 
57 were delivered through section 106. Also, 1 
supported living property was delivered and 4 
supported living income streams were developed 
and leased out to a third party.

  The 5 year business plan for Concert Living sets 
out to deliver 239 sales units, and generate a 
£3.9m operating surplus over its first 5 years.

  For 2019/20 we planned to deliver 12 unit 
completions at Edward Gardens. During the year 
there were a number of setbacks with delivering 
this scheme, due to contractor issues and 
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planning permission. The scheme completed in 
early 20/21. Budgeted spend was £6.1m, with 
actual spend of £1.6m due to delays.

   Approved investment of over £32 million over 5 
years to deliver over 5,300 new components (e.g. 
bathrooms and kitchens). 

  For 2019/20 we achieved our target and spent 
£6.2m on 1,303 components. 

  Our operating margin is also set to increase 
steadily by more than 4% over the next five years 
due to contribution from shared ownership and 
Concert Living sales, growth in TECS customers 
and rental income increases.

  For 2019/20 we achieved an operating margin of 
21.2%.

  We continually undertake procurement activities 
with VFM considered as part of each procurement. 

  For 2019/20 we reviewed contracts totalling 
£3.32m, resulting in £0.3m savings, with improved 
services for customers.

  Maximising income by managing arrears and 
minimising losses from voids is important to us.

  We have not met our arrears target of 3.6% 
by 0.3%, this is due to 31st March being mid-
week (week 53 positions shows performance at 
3.5% which would have exceeded the target). 
Voids performance has continued to see an 
improvement in relation to general needs and 
independent living, but saw a worsening of voids 
in our supported living accommodation, meaning 
that we missed our overall target.

  Managing our cost per unit is a key focus. Along 
with other specialist supported housing providers, 
the Group’s average social housing cost per unit 
is higher than the sector median. However, when 
compared with registered providers with more 
than 30% of supported housing, the Group’s 
average social cost per unit is lower than the 
median.  
Our 2018/19 cost per unit was £5,077 with 
2019/20 increasing to £5,244.

The Value for Money Standard and our
performance

We are required to comply with The Regulator of 
Social Housing’s VFM Standard which includes 
metrics for Registered Providers to demonstrate 
efficiency, effectiveness and economy. 

The standard states that we should have targets in 
place for measuring performance so that we can see 
how we are achieving value for money and delivering 
our strategic objectives. The RSH published its Global 
Accounts 2019 report in December 2019 and the 
Group has compared its performance for 2019/20 
with a range of peers derived from this publication. 
The table below shows the nine metrics and how we 
have performed for 2019 and 2020, our anticipated 
performance and how we compare to the sector 
median, based on the latest available information.
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Peers 
Global 

Accounts

Progress Housing Group

ACTUAL TARGET

No Metric
2018/19 2017/18

Restated#

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/2025

1 Reinvestment % 6.2% 2.6% 2.3% 4.4% 5.5% 6.2% 5.6% 6.1% 6.1%

2a New supply delivered 

(social housing units)*

1.4% 0.9% 0.9% 1.4% 1.2% 1.9% 2.2% 2.7% 2.4%

2b New supply delivered 

(non-social housing units)

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 0.4% 0.4% 0.0% 0.0% 

3 Gearing % 43% 47% 45% 44% 42% 44% 42% 40% 39% 

4 EBITDA MRI as a % of interest 

(cash surplus)

182% 228% 259% 259% 266% 286% 285% 275% 261%  

5 Headline Social Housing Cost 

Per Unit

£3,695 £4,800 £5,077 £5,244 £5,280 £5,091 £5,025 £4,965 £4,948  

5a 5a Headline Social Cost Per 

Unit (General needs and 

independent living)

£3,499          £3,438     £3,527    £3,464     £3,641 N/A N/A N/A N/A

5b Headline Social Cost Per Unit 

(Supported Housing)

£8,462 £7,461     £8,340     £8,699   £8,785 N/A N/A N/A N/A

6a Operating margin 

(social housing lettings only)

29.2% 25.0% 24.0% 23.3%   20.8% 25.4% 26.6% 27.8% 25.5%  

6b Operating margin (overall) 25.8% 24.9% 24.1% 21.2% 19.1% 21.5% 20.6% 22.7% 20.8% 

7 Return on capital 3.8% 3.4% 3.7% 3.3% 3.1% 3.7% 3.8% 3.7% 3.5%  

# EBITDA, CPU, Gearing and Reinvestment metrics for 2018/19 have been restated to align with the Global Accounts 2019.
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Report of the board continued
Performance against our additional metrics

The senior management team has reviewed our targets in the balanced scorecard and additional VFM metrics. 
This framework has been developed to create a ‘golden thread’ from the Plan objectives to operational delivery. 

The table below shows our VFM additional metrics and how we have performed against our peers and our own 
targets. We have also identified our future targets.

Peer
Progress Housing Group

ACTUAL TARGET

No Metric Peer 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

8 Overall 
satisfaction 
index

The 
Leadership 
Factor

76.7% 80.5% 80.6% 80.6% 81.0% 81.0% 81.0%

9 Repairs tenant 
satisfaction

The 
Leadership 
Factor

77.7% 74.0% 76.5% 76.5% 77.0% 77.0% 77.5%

10 Neighbourhood 
satisfaction

The 
Leadership 
Factor

80.3% 83.4% 83.3% 83.3% 84.0% 84.0% 84.0%

11 Views taken 
satisfaction

The 
Leadership 
Factor

71.1% 74.8% 74.5% 74.5% 77.0% 77.0% 77.5%

12 Workforce 
sickness

Office of 
National 
Statistics

2.0% 5.0% 4.2% 4.5% 4.4% 4.4% 4.4%

13 Employee 
turnover

Housemark 11.8% 15.2% 11.5% 11.8% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%

14 Current tenant 
arrears

Global 
Accounts

2.8% 3.4% 3.6% 3.9% 3.6% 3.6% 3.6%

15 Former tenant 
arrears

Global 
Accounts

1.0% 0.9% 0.8% 1.2% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8%

16 Rent collected Housemark 99.8% 99.7% 99.9% 99.5% 99.5% 99.5% 99.5%

17 No. of 
responsive 
repairs per 
unit

Housemark 3.3 4.4 4.5 4.2 4.0 4.0 4.0

18 Quality 
of home 
satisfaction

The 
Leadership 
Factor

77.9% 80.0% 81.1% 81.1% 82.0% 82.0% 82.0%

19 General needs 
relet times

Housemark 25.4 32.6 22.3 21.2 25.5 20.0 19.0

20 Rent lost due 
to voids

Global 
Accounts

1.3% 5.7% 5.5% 5.7% 5.1% 4.8% 4.8%

21 Vacant social 
stock

Statistical 
Data Return

0.9% 3.8% 3.7% 3.2% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%
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Comparing 2019/20 with the latest peer Group data 
(2018/19), the table shows that we are outperforming 
or the same as the sector for 6 of the 14 metrics - four 
satisfaction measures, employee turnover and relet times.
However, the table also shows that we are worse than
the sector for eight metrics - repairs satisfaction, employee 
sickness, current tenant arrears, former tenant arrears, 
rent collected, rent lost due to voids and vacant stock.

When we compare our own performance to last year 
we have improved or maintained our performance for 8 
of the 14 metrics.

Satisfaction (metric 8, 9, 10 and 11)
The satisfaction performance (metrics number 8, 9, 
10, 11 and 18) remain unchanged as the next STAR 
survey will be completed in March 2021. Following 
the redesign of all transactional surveys we use this 
insight throughout the year to improve the customer 
experience. This new process of looking at actions 
throughout the year should see improvements in our 
STAR results in 2021. 

Employee (metric 12 and 13)
The Group use the Office of National Statistics (ONS) 
Labour Force Survey as a benchmark for sickness 
absence comparisons. ONS currently report an 
absence rate of 2%. Absence rates and average days 
lost varies when you look at sector, region and size 
of workforce. 

Housemark, the housing sectors benchmarking 
organisation, use average working days lost as a 
measure as opposed to a percentage absence rate. 
As at March 2020 our average working days lost was 
11.9 days, which is just below the sectors 2019 lower 
quartile of 10.6 days (median 9.3 days). 

We recognise that some of the actions in 2020/21 
we will continue to develop our health and wellbeing 
strategy to address barriers to wellbeing, identifying 
ways we can enhance employee wellbeing within the 
Group and maximise attendance at work.

Income collection (metric 14, 15 and 16)
During 2019/20, arrears performance is worse than 
our peers, but we remain focused on making sure our 
rent collection is as high as possible. Year-end arrears 
performance is impacted by 31 March being in the 
middle of a week. At the end of week 53, performance 
improves to 3.5%, which exceeds the 2019 /20 target.

We have not met our arrears target of 3.6% by 0.3%. 
This is due to 31 March being mid-week. Voids 
performance has continued to see an improvement 
in general needs and independent living, but for 
supported living accommodation, we missed our 
overall target.

Repairs (metric 17 and 18)
On average the Group undertake more responsive 
repairs per units compared to their peers. As 
discussed in the cost per unit, Supported Living 
accommodation influences this indicator, with a higher 
number of responsive repairs due to the needs of 
those living in these homes.

Voids and lettings (metric 19, 20 and 21)
In 2018/19, we saw an improvement of 10.3 days to 
general needs relet properties which has resulted in 
better performance than the sector. In 2019/20 we 
can see a further improvement of 0.9 days. 

When comparing overall void rent lost to our peers, 
our performance is worse due to higher than average 
supported living properties compared to other 
registered providers. When comparing general needs 
rent lost due to voids, we are performing better than 
our peers. Supported living accommodation has a 
longer relet time and higher rent losses due to the 
nature of the accommodation. For example, ensuring 
tenant compatibility in shared accommodation adds 
considerably to relet periods. We work closely with 
local authority commissioners and support providers 
to let properties as quickly as possible. Where this 
is not possible, and a management agreement is in 
place, we recharge the void costs to reduce our risk. 
We are completing a review of all properties with voids 
in a bid to reduce these figures by March 2021.

Report of the board continued
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The	2018	VFM	standard	states	that	Registered	
Providers	must	demonstrate:

a)	 a	robust	approach	to	achieving	value	
for	money	–	this	must	include	a	robust	
approach	to	decision	making	and	a	rigorous	
appraisal	of	potential	options	for	improving	
performance

What does this mean?

This means that when we make decisions on our 
expenditure, we understand the outputs achieved. We 
consider how our properties, offices and employees 
operate, and whether this is the best use of our 
resources or whether these resources should be 
allocated elsewhere. In addition, we compare against 
other possible alternatives and understand how 
expenditure delivers our strategic objectives.

What is our approach and what 
decisions have we made?

Our Strategic Plan clearly outlines our intention to 
provide more and better homes and to deliver a 
stronger organisation. This links to a number of our 
strategies including development, asset management, 
treasury and VFM. These strategies are aligned to our 
long-term financial plan and are set by our board. We 
have operational teams in place to deliver the actions 
as detailed in their operational plans.

During	2019/20	we	have:	

 Continued our development strategy which aims 
to have a balanced programme where we may 
choose to develop new properties that have a 
negative NPV so that we can achieve our social 
objectives but also develop other properties with

 a positive NPV to maintain our financial strength. 
We have completed 29 Homes England funded 
properties with spend of £13.5m and grant funding 

 of £3m. 62 non grant funded units have completed 
with spend of £4.6m.These decisions are taken 
by our Financial Appraisal Team to ensure new 
developments are delivered appropriately.

 Reviewed our Asset Management Strategy 
which helps us to identify both poor and well 
performing stock that will trigger a possible 
options appraisal. There were no significant 
schemes identified during the year. We operate 
a standard template for options appraisals when 
reviewing our stock performance, which helps 
us to make clear decisions on the future viability 
of our stock. This includes options to dispose, 
remodel, change tenure or in the case of some 
supported living accommodation, decommission 
schemes. The Group is considering the social 
and economic performance of our assets and is 
able to determine the best options for their future 
use, this now includes all properties, land and 
sites we own or manage. During the year we sold 
eight units (excluding Right to Buy (RTB), Right 
to Acquire (RTA), market rented sales and shared 
ownership) which generated £1.6 million in sales 
proceeds. This income helps us to re-invest in new 
and existing homes.

 Achieved income of more than £5.3m from our 
Progress Lifeline and TECS service, exceeding 
target with more than 49,000 connections. This 
service has grown significantly over the last couple 
of years and we submit competitive bids to secure 
new contracts whilst providing a quality service 
to a wide range of customers. We have approved 
further investment in staff resources to continue 
to grow the business and to contribute to our 
operating margin.

 To support agile and mobile working and to 
improve the way services are delivered to our 
customers the Group has been reviewing all office 
accommodation and workspace.

 We have reassessed the use of vacant office 
space, Warwick House and established this as a 
disaster recovery site for the Lifeline service. This 
strengthens the resilience of the operation and 
reduces reliance on Tunstall as part of the LCC 
Telecare service.   

Report of the board continued
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 A new office in Leyland has been leased with 
a view that, alongside an increase in agile and 
home working, one or possibly two of our current 
offices can be released in 2020/21. The overall 
office lease costs would remain the same but the 
new office is being renovated to support agile and 
mobile working. The office at Sumner House in 
Leyland is also being improved to create a working 
environment that supports a collaborative work 
force and therefore improves the services delivered 
to our customer.

b)	 regular	and	appropriate	consideration	by	the	
Board	of	potential	value	for	money	gains	–	
this	must	include	full	consideration	of	costs	
and	benefits	of	alternative	commercial,	
organizational	and	delivery	structures

What does this mean?

This means that we should consider potential 
opportunities to achieve VFM in all of our activities. 
For us, this includes understanding VFM in our 
procurement arrangements, diversification into different 
business areas, investment in non-social activities and 
the geography of our operations.

What considerations have we made?

During the year we have focused our attention on 
reviews of our supported living activity which is spread 
across England and Scotland.

1)		 Provision	of	maintenance	services	for	
supported	living	customers

The Group commissioned HQN to carry out a cost 
comparison exercise of the responsive repairs and 
other maintenance services, in particular comparing 
costs delivered by its in-house team to those delivered 
by a number of its external contractors. 

The analysis of repair costs indicated that significantly 
lower repair costs are being incurred by the 
organisation from the in-house team compared to 
external contractors who provide the service to the 
Supported Living properties. 

The Group has developed an action plan to address 
the recommendations in the report. 

Leased in accommodation for 
supported living customers

During the course of the year, there have been a 
number of actions and reviews of the Group’s leased 
in portfolio. The Group has 246 leased in schemes, 
comprising 402 rental streams as at 31 March 2020, 
all of which are used to provide Supported Living 
accommodation. 

A number of actions have been carried out in the year:

 Twenty-one leases have fallen away (55 rental 
streams) either due to the property no longer 
being required, no suitable tenants, or some other 
sustainability reason. 

 One scheme was purchased and leased out in 
2019 and this comprised of four rental units. This 
brings the total number of leased out properties to 
twenty-one. Leased out schemes typically provide 
supported housing, resource centres or children’s 
services.

 The portfolio has been reviewed to determine the 
overall financial performance, and further work is 
being carried out to address those that are loss 
making to either improve the position or consider 
exiting the lease where possible. Overall the 
portfolio is making a positive return.

 Consideration of potential options around 
purchase or re-provision of such properties 
following a strategic decision made by the 
Board to move away from leasing in this type of 
accommodation wherever possible.

The costs associated with these leases affect a 
number of the VFM metrics, the main one to note is 
the Headline Social Cost per unit. The lease operating 
costs are included within this metric, which can 
skew the comparability to other providers and is not 
comparable with other supported living units which 
are owned on a freehold basis. If the properties were 
owned, the equivalent operating expense would be 
depreciation which is excluded from the calculation, 
therefore, the cost per unit for these rental streams is 
somewhat higher than the ‘owned’ alternative.

Report of the board continued
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a)	 consideration	of	value	for	money	across	
their	whole	business	and	where	they	invest	
in	non-social	housing	activity,	they	should	
consider	whether	this	generates	returns	
commensurate	to	the	risk	involved	and	
justification	where	this	is	not	the	case

What does this mean?

This means that when we consider growth 
opportunities which are not traditional social housing 
i.e. in areas such as TECS and Concert Living that we 
analyse the risk involved, have mitigating strategies 
for failure and ensure there is a financial return which 
reflects the level of risk on the activity. If no financial 
return is envisaged, the business case should clearly 
justify other intended benefits. In addition, VFM, in 
line with our strategy, should be in our day to day 
operations which includes procurement.

How have we considered VFM in 
non-social housing activity?

Our current non-social housing activity mainly relates 
to Progress Living, Progress Lifeline activities and 
Concert Living. In total, these activities generate 
around £10 million in turnover with an operating 
surplus of around £1.2 million and therefore provide a 
healthy contribution to our operating surplus. Progress 
Lifeline and Concert Living are growth areas for us.
Progress Living is the brand which provides key 
worker accommodation, with 573 units for 42 years, 
starting from 2006. We can choose to extend the 
contract if the required rate of financial return has not 
been achieved after 42 years. The board approved 
this activity in order to meet housing need, generate a 
financial return and to diversify. The risks are regularly 
monitored; financial and operating performance is 
reported annually to the board and United Lincolnshire 
Hospital Trust. This activity is financially performing 
better than anticipated and generates a surplus of 
£0.8 million a year.

Progress Lifeline activities currently generate more 
than £5.3 million in turnover and has seen growth 
over the last few years. We are aiming to grow new 
provision by £8 million over the next five years. We 
have a proven track record in providing TECS services 
and each new contract is financially appraised and 
priced prior to bidding for the contract.

The implementation of the electronic signature 
project enabled Lifeline installers to capture customer 
information and signatures electronically, directly 
on their device in the customers home and send it 
immediately to update the call handling database. This 
improved data security, speed and efficiency of data 
being captured and transferred. 

The upgrade to PNC8 enabled new more efficient 
processes to be introduced and the speed of the 
remote use of the system to be improved.

Concert Living develops new homes for outright sale 
and its activity concentrates in areas where the housing 
market is stronger. It aims to serve the mainstream 
housing market with conventionally designed and 
constructed homes of two to five bedrooms. This new 
initiative has plans to generate turnover up to £45 million 
over the next five years and contribute a healthy profit for 
re-investment into the Group. Concert Living has its own 
board to oversee and approve its operations against a 
detailed business case, approved by the Parent board. 
Its first development commenced in 2018 and is closely 
monitored by the Concert Living board, with financial 
performance reported to the Parent board.

We monitor and report on all of these non-social 
housing activities separately and whilst our growth 
in this non-social activity is significant, the long-term 
financial plan does not rely on this activity to support 
our Plan requirements. Our social housing activity 
remains our core operation. Our long-term financial 
plans have been risk tested and include mitigations in 
the event of loss of Progress Lifeline contracts and the 
failure of Concert Living to achieve its required profits. 

How have we considered VFM in our 
day to day business?

Our operational teams across the whole business 
incorporate VFM in their activities. The teams record 
their achievements and plans on a VFM tracker. 

Report of the board continued
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During	2019/20	we	have:

 Reviewed several existing contracts with a value 
of £3.3m and have either maintained the existing 
cost, contained to a low cost increase and 
achieved savings of £0.3m. 

 Procured new contracts to provide a cost effective 
solution and improved service provision to tenants. 

 Accessed funding for 52 supported living 
customers reducing expenditure within the Group. 

 Invested in training and support for managers 
which has resulted in a reduction in sickness 
absence with a cost reduction of lost time across 
2 years of £0.4m (48%). Increased employee 
available resource to provide services to 
customers

 Maximised the use of the apprenticeship levy. 
This costs us c£66,000 each year and in this year 
we have 37 employees accessing training and 
development opportunities.

 Increased in-house delivery teams for component 
replacements during the year, which achieves a 
cost saving of £0.5m for 2020/21.

For	2020/21	we	are	planning	to:

 Re-procure over 15 contracts including insurance, 
card services, flooring, fuel and white goods with 
a total value of £4.7m. We will seek to achieve 
savings or avoid or minimise cost increases and 
also improve services to customers.

 Invest in a number of new IT projects including risk
 management software, invoice capture software 

and health and safety software. Whilst there will 
be implementation costs, each project will have 
a business case to justify improvements through 
automation. 

 Develop a Supported Living void strategy to 
improve void performance in Supported Living. 
The strategy focuses upon long term voids in 
shared supported living which are difficult to fill 
due to compatibility issues. 

 A new Contract Management Business Partner 
role will work with staff across the organisation 
to make further improvements and ensure a 
consistent approach. 

This demonstrates the Group’s commitment to
ensuring VFM within its operational activities.

Our overall assessment of VFM

The board believes that, in completing this 
comprehensive VFM self-assessment, it has complied 
with the regulator’s VFM standard.

We have produced a full and honest assessment to 
enable our stakeholders to understand how we are 
performing currently against the targets we had set 
ourselves and what our forward-looking targets are so 
that we can demonstrate our continuing commitment 
to VFM. Any known impacts on future delivery of VFM 
due to the Coronavirus pandemic will be published as an
update to the Group’s VFM 2020 position statement.

Further details can be found on the Group’s website 
www.progressgroup.org.uk

Regulation

As a registered provider, we are regulated by 
Regulator of Social Housing. In February 2020 the 
regulator published its In Depth Assessment rating 
and the Group was downgraded to a G2/V1 viability 
rating. This is a compliant grading and the Group 
is completing an action plan as a roadmap to a G1 
status. The board monitors its ongoing compliance 
with both the economic and consumer Regulatory 
Standards and compliance is reported to the board 
on an annual basis with any changes or implications 
arising within the year being reported on an ad hoc 
basis. In line with the changes to the Accounting 
Direction for private registered providers of social 
housing 2019, board confirms compliance with these 
Standards up until the signing of the accounts.

Donations

The Group made £116k charitable donations during 
the year (2019: £71k).

For these reasons, therefore, the board continues 
to adopt the Going Concern basis in preparing the 
financial statements.

Report of the board continued
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Going concern

For the Group, after making appropriate enquiries, and 
whilst recognising both a changing policy world and 
the potential impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, the 
board is satisfied that no significant risks or exposures 
exist other than those disclosed in the financial 
statements and we are well placed to understand and 
manage the challenges and business risks ahead.

The board has approved both an updated budget for 
each Group company for the coming year and also its 
long term financial plans in the light of the COVID-19 
pandemic to reflect any anticipated changes. The main
impact on our plans is the deferral of new development 
programmes and also the delivery of our planned 
maintenance programmes. We have assumed a 
period of four months delay with our driver to deliver 
our outputs as originally planned by March 2022.

We have in place £271m reserves, £271m facilities 
with £237m utilised at 31 March 2020. The long term 
financial plans show that it is able to service these 
debt facilities whilst continuing to comply with lenders’ 
covenants. Our treasury strategy will be updated by 
December 2020 to reflect the latest approved financial 
plan and will set out our strategy for future funding. In 
order to ensure going concern, sensitivities have been 
put through the financial plans for the Group. The 
Group has sufficient funding to support the business 
activities and stress testing has been undertaken to 
provide the Board with assurance that it has a resilient 
plan in place.

For these reasons, the board considers it has a 
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to 
continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they 
fall due for a period of at least 12 months following 
the signing of the accounts. The board therefore 
continues to adopt the going concern basis in the 
financial statements. 

Statement of Compliance

This strategic report has been prepared in accordance 
with best practice guidance and the board, in 
approving the financial statements, is also approving 
the strategic report.

Statement of Disclosure to the Auditors

At the time of approval of this report:

a) so far as the Directors are aware, there is no 
relevant audit information of which the Group’s 
auditor is unaware; and  

b) the Directors have taken all steps that they ought 
to have taken as Non-Executive Directors in order 
to make themselves aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that the Group’s 
auditor is aware of that information.  

Auditors

BDO LLP have expressed their willingness to continue 
in office, accordingly a resolution is to be proposed at 
the Annual General Meeting for their re-appointment.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Group will be held 
on 7 September 2020.

The report of the board was approved by order of the 
board and signed on its behalf by

Deborah	Atherton
Company	Secretary

7 September 2020

Report of the board continued
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Statement of board’s responsibilities in 
respect of the board’s report and the 
financial statements  

The board members are responsible for preparing the 
report of the board and the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and regulations. 

Co-operative and Community Benefit Society law and 
social housing legislation require the board members 
to prepare financial statements for each financial 
year in accordance with United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards and applicable law). 

In preparing these financial statements, the board 
members are required to:

  select suitable accounting policies and then apply 
them consistently;

  make judgements and accounting estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent;

  state whether applicable UK Accounting 
Standards and the Statement of Recommended 
Practice: Accounting by registered social housing 
providers (updated 2018) have been followed, 
subject to any material departures disclosed and 
explained in the financial statements; and

  prepare the financial statements on the going 
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to 
presume that the Group and Company will 
continue in business.

The board members are responsible for keeping 
adequate accounting records that are sufficient 
to show and explain the Group and Company’s 
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy 
at any time the financial position of the Group and
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Co-operative and 
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Housing 
and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting 
Direction for private registered providers of social
housing 2019. 

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets 
of the Group and Company and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of 
fraud and other irregularities.

The board is responsible for ensuring that the report 
of the board is prepared in accordance with the 
Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting by 
registered social housing providers (updated 2018).

Financial statements are published on the Group’s 
website in accordance with legislation in the United 
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination 
of financial statements, which may vary from 
legislation in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and 
integrity of the Group’s website is the responsibility 
of the board members. The board members’ 
responsibility also extends to the ongoing integrity of 
the financial statements contained therein.

Statement of board's responsibilities
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Independent auditor's report to the members 
of Progress Housing Group Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Progress 
Housing Group Limited (“the Company”) and its 
subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year ended 31 March 
2020 which comprise the consolidated and Company 
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated 
and Company statement of financial position, the 
consolidated and Company statement of changes in 
reserves, the consolidated statement of cash flows 
and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies. The 
financial reporting framework that has been applied 
in their preparation is applicable law and United 
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial 
Reporting Standard 102 the Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland 
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

 give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s 
and of the Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2020 
and of the Group’s and the Company’s surplus for 
the year then ended;

 have been properly prepared in accordance with 
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice; and

 have been properly prepared in accordance 
with the Co-operative and Community Benefit 
Societies Act 2014, the Co-operative and 
Community Benefit Societies (Group Accounts) 
Regulations 1969, the Housing and Regeneration 
Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for Private 
Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) 
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the 
Group and Company in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s 
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion.

Conclusion relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following 
matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to 
report to you where:

 the board members use of the going concern 
basis of accounting in the preparation of the 
financial statements is not appropriate; or

 the board members have not disclosed in the 
financial statements any identified material 
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about 
the Group’s or the Company’s ability to continue to 
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for 
a period of at least twelve months from the date 
when the financial statements are authorised for 
issue.
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Other information

The board are responsible for the other information. 
Other information comprises the information included 
in the annual report, other than the financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on 
the financial statements does not cover the other 
information we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information 
including the Report of the Board and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we 
are required to determine whether there is a material 
misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information we are 
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required 
to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following 
matters where we are required by the Co-operative or 
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 or the Housing 
and Regeneration Act 2008 to report to you if, in our 
opinion:

 the information given in the Report of the Board for 
the financial year for which the financial statements 
are prepared is not consistent with the financial 
statements;

 adequate accounting records have not been kept 
by the Parent Company; or

 a satisfactory system of control has not been 
maintained over transactions; or

 the Parent Company financial statements are not 
in agreement with the accounting records and 
returns; or

 we have not received all the information and 
explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of the board

As explained more fully in the statement of Board’s 
responsibilities set out on page 27, the board is 
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements 
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, 
and for such internal control as the board members 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the board are 
responsible for assessing the Group and the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the board 
either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to 
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to 
do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit 
of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements.

Independent auditor's report to the members 
of Progress Housing Group Limited continued
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A further description of our responsibilities for the 
audit of the financial statements is located on the 
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.
uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part 
of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report
 
This report is made solely to the members of the 
Company, as a body, in accordance with the Housing 
and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Co-operative 
and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014. Our audit 
work has been undertaken so that we might state 
to the Company’s members those matters we are 
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and 
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than the Company and the members as 
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the 
opinions we have formed.

BDO	LLP
Statutory	Auditor,	Manchester
Date:

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered 
in England and Wales (with registered number 
OC305127). 

Independent auditor's report to the members 
of Progress Housing Group Limited continued
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Consolidated and Company Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Group Company

Notes 2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Turnover 2	 79,892 77,951 10,259 9,713 

Operating expenditure 2	 (61,918) (57,746) (10,000) (9,154)

Cost of sales 2 (1,054) (1,408)  -  - 

2 16,920	 18,797	 259 559	

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6 167 - (16) - 

Operating	surplus 2	 17,087	 18,797	 243	 559	

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6	  - 652  - (24)

Movement in fair value of investment properties 11	  (155) (9)  - (9)

Interest receivable 7	 243 246 71 27 

Interest and financing costs 8	 (7,912) (8,947) (119) (141)

Share of joint venture profit 13	 121 139  -  - 

Surplus	before	tax 9,384	 10,878	 195	 412	

Tax on surplus on ordinary activities 9	 (53) (92) (111) (137)

Surplus	after	tax	 5	 9,331	 10,786	 84	 275	

Actuarial gain on pension scheme 26	 636 2,770 1,950 478 

UK deferred tax attributable to other comprehensive 
income

9	
(200) 242  (200) 242 

Initial recognition of multi-employer benefit scheme 26	  -  (1,291)  - (806)

(Decrease)/Increase on joint venture hedge reserve 13	 (122) 589  -  - 

Total	comprehensive	income	for	the	year 9,645 13,096	 1,834	 189	

The notes on pages 36 to 74 form an integral part of the financial statements.  
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Consolidated and Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2020

Group Company

Notes 2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Tangible	fixed	assets

Housing properties at cost 10	 520,047 508,185  -  - 

Other tangible fixed assets 11	 6,963 6,529 2,991 3,055 

Fixed asset investments 12	  -  - 500  - 

527,010 514,714 3,491 3,055 

Current	assets

Stock 14	 2,873 1,480  -  - 

Debtors 15	 8,916 6,295 3,677 2,396 

Investments 16	 238 228  -  - 

Cash and cash equivalents 9,392 8,119 1,251 2,221 

21,419 16,122 4,928 4,617 

Less: Creditors amounts falling due within one year 17	 (17,004) (16,821) (1,311) (803)

Net	current	assets/(liabilities) 4,415 (699) 3,617 3,814 

Total	assets	less	current	liabilities 531,425 514,015 7,108 6,869 

Creditors

Amounts falling due after more than one year 18	 (232,367) (228,203)  - (23)

Government grants 18	 (14,256) (11,419)  -  - 

Provision for investment in joint venture 13	 (2,121) (1,996)  -  - 

Pension liabilities 26	 (11,228) (10,589) (3,342) (4,914)

Net	assets 271,453 261,808 3,766 1,932 

Reserves

Revaluation reserves 154,100 156,059 765 781 

Designated reserves 386 306  -  - 

Income and expenditure reserves 116,967 105,443 3,001 1,151 

271,453 261,808 3,766 1,932 

The notes on pages 36 to 74 form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 31 to 35 were approved by the Board of Management on 7 September 2020.

Janet	Hale		 	 Nigel	Wright	 	 	 Deborah	Atherton
Chair		 	 Board	Member	 	 	 Company	Secretary
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Reserves
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Revaluation	
reserves

Designated	
reserves

Income	&	
expenditure	

reserves

Total

Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At	1	April	2019 156,059 306 105,443 261,808 

Surplus for the year  -  - 9,331 9,331 

Decrease on joint venture hedge reserve  -  - (122) (122)

Net actuarial gain on pension schemes  -  - 436 436

Other comprehensive income for the year  -  - 314 314

Reserve transfers:

Transfer from revenue reserves to designated reserves  - 80 (80)  - 

Realisation of revaluation reserve in respect of disposals 
of housing property

(513)  - 513  - 

Realisation of revaluation reserve in respect of 
depreciation on revalued housing property

(1,330)  - 1,330  - 

Realisation of revaluation reserve in respect of 
impairment on revalued housing property

(116)  - 116  - 

As	at	31	March	2020 154,100	 386	 116,967	 271,453	

Group Revaluation	
reserves

Designated	
reserves

Income	&	
expenditure	

reserves

Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At	1	April	2018 158,136 180 90,396 248,712 

Surplus for the year  -  - 10,786 10,786 

Actuarial gain on pension scheme net of deferred tax  -  - 589 589 

Decrease on joint venture hedge reserve  -  - 1,721 1,721 

Other comprehensive income for the year  -  - 2,310 2,310 

Reserve transfers:

Transfer from revenue reserves to designated reserves  - 126 (126)  - 

Realisation of revaluation reserve in respect of 
impairment of housing property

(639)  - 639  - 

Realisation of revaluation reserve in respect of disposals 
of housing property

(1,330)  - 1,330  - 

Realisation of revaluation reserve in respect of 
depreciation on housing property

(108)  - 108  - 

As	at	31	March	2019 156,059	 306	 105,443	 261,808	
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Company Statement of Changes in Reserves
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Revaluation	
reserves

Income	&	
expenditure	

reserves

Total

Company £'000 £'000 £'000

At	1	April	2019 781 1,151 1,932 

Surplus for the year  - 84 84 

Net actuarial gain on pension scheme 
& other comprehensive income for the year

 - 1,750 1,750

Reserve transfers:

Realisation of revaluation reserve in respect of 
depreciation on revalued housing property

(16) 16  - 

As	at	31	March	2020 765	 3,001	 3,766	

Revaluation	
reserves

Income	&	
expenditure	

reserves

Total

Company £'000 £'000 £'000

At	1	April	2018 797 946 1,743 

Surplus for the year  - 275 275 

Net actuarial loss on pension scheme & other 
comprehensive income for the year

 - (86) (86)

Reserve transfers:

Realisation of revaluation reserve in respect of 
depreciation on housing property

(16) 16  - 

As	at	31	March	2019 781	 1,151	 1,932	
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Consolidated Statement of Cashflows
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Group
Restated#

Group

Notes 2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Cashflow	from	operating	activities	(see	below) 24,372	 26,820

Purchase of housing properties (16,324) (8,672)

Development for sale 275 572

Purchase of housing property components (5,926) (5,739)

Government grants received 3,036 2,108 

Purchase of other tangible fixed assets (729) (584)

Proceeds from the sale of tangible fixed assets 167 3,201 

Cashflow in respect of joint venture 36 32 

Cashflow	from	Investing	Activities (19,465) (9,082)

Interest received 221 211 

Interest paid (8,331) (9,130)

Advances / (repayments) of existing borrowings 4,454 (12,458)

Investments (placed)/realised (10) (44)

Capital element of finance lease rental payments (56) (56)

Dividends received from joint venture 88 108 

Cashflow	from	financing	activities (3,634) (21,369)

Net	change	in	cash	and	cash	equivalents 1,273 (3,631)

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	at	1	April 8,119 11,750 

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	at	31	March 9,392	 8,119	

Operating surplus 17,087 18,797 

Increase in stock (1,392) (710)

Depreciation of tangible property fixed assets 5 10,128 9,703 

Impairment of housing 5 399 21 

Amortisation of government grants 3a/18 (161) (135)

Pension costs less contributions paid 2,484 (383)

Share of operating surplus in joint venture 13 121 139 

Adjustment for investing activities - Development for sale (275) (572) 

Adjustment for investing activities - Disposal of tangible fixed assets 6 (167)  - 

Taxation paid (108) (190)

Increase in trade and other debtors (2,621) (976)

(Decrease) / increase in trade and other creditors (1,123) 1,126 

Cashflow	from	operating	activities 24,372	 26,820	

Reconciliation of net cashflow to movement in net debt

Increase / (Decrease) in cash in the period 1,273 (3,631)

Cash deposited investments in 10 44 

Change in loans - principal repaid (borrowed) (4,454) 12,458 

Change in loans -amortisation 8/23 657 552 

Change in loans - amortisation of borrowing costs 24 32 

Cash used in repaying finance lease capital 56 56 

(Increase)	/	Decrease	in	net	debt (2,434) 9,511	

Net	debt	at	1	April (227,239) (236,750)

Net	debt	31	March 23 (229,673) (227,239)

# Denotes restatement for FRS102 Development for sale reallocated from cash flow from operating activities to cash flow from 
investing activities.
# Denotes restatement for FRS102 Taxation reallocated from cash flow from financing to cash flow from operating
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(1) Basis of accounting

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Group are prepared 
in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 
(FRS 102) – the applicable financial reporting standard 
in the UK and Republic of Ireland and the Statement 
of Recommended Practice: Accounting by Registered 
Social Housing Providers Update 2014 and comply 
with the Accounting Direction for Private Registered 
Providers of Social Housing 2019. 

In the preparation of these financial statements all 
requirements set out in the 2018 updated Statement 
of Recommended Practise (SORP) have been applied. 
This includes the change that items that precede 
operating profit must not exclude items clearly related 
to operations which includes disposals of Property, 
Plant and Equipment. This has not been applied 
for the prior year as only effective for financial years 
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

The Group has included the requirement of 
the Accounting Direction that the statement on 
compliance should specifically cover compliance with 
the standard during the course of the year and up to 
the date of signing of the accounts. 

The presentation currency of these financial 
statements is sterling. All amounts in the financial 
statements have been rounded to the nearest £1,000.

Going concern

The Group’s business activities, its current financial 
position and factors likely to affect its future 
development are set out within the Strategic Report. 
The Group has in place long-term borrowing facilities 
which provide adequate resources to finance 
reinvestment and development programmes, along 
with the Group’s day to day operations. The Group 
also has a long-term business plan which shows that 
it is able to service debt facilities, whilst continuing to 
comply with lenders’ covenants.

On this basis, the board has a reasonable expectation 
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future, being 
a period of at least twelve months after the date on 
which the report and financial statements are signed. 
For this reason, it continues to adopt the going 
concern basis in the financial statements.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated accounts incorporate the financial 
statements of Progress Housing Group Limited and 
its subsidiaries and also its share of the joint venture, 
LiLAC. Further details of the subsidiaries are disclosed 
in note 25. Intra-group transactions are eliminated on 
consolidation. Subsidiaries’ financial statements are 
made up to 31 March and LiLAC Joint Venture has 
financial statements made up to 31 December.

A range of reasonable scenarios have been stress 
tested and the plan is resilient under all reasonable 
scenarios.

(2) Turnover

Income is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable. The Group 
generates the following material income streams: 

 Rental income receivable (after deducting lost rent 
from void properties available for letting) 

 First tranche sales of Low Cost Home Ownership 
housing properties developed for sale 

 Service charges receivable 
 Void guarantees
 Revenue and supporting people grants 
 Proceeds from the sale of land and property, other 

than development for sale.

Rental income is recognised from the point when 
properties under development reach practical 
completion and are formally let, income from first 
tranche sales and sales of properties are recognised 
at the point of legal completion of the sale.

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1. Accounting policies

DocuSign Envelope ID: 54685B5A-402C-4412-A81D-F124AFD1F9FA



Progress Housing Group Limited   Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

37

(3) Housing properties

Housing properties completed prior to 1 April 2014 
are stated at ‘Deemed cost’ as permitted by the 
transitional arrangements of FRS102 para 35.10d 
and are accounted for under the cost model. The 
valuation in place at the transition date, 1 April 2014, 
was deemed cost. This value is then depreciated each 
year, and stated at net book value which is equivalent 
to cost less depreciation. All housing properties 
acquired after 1 April 2014 are accounted for at cost, 
and then subsequently depreciated.

Completed housing properties have been split 
between their land and structure costs and a specific 
set of major components that require periodic 
replacement as set out in the accounting policy 27. 

A small number of staff flats included within property, 
plant and equipment are held at historic cost net book 
value as these units do not generate any rental cash 
flows.

Refurbishment or replacement of such a component 
is capitalised and then depreciated on a straight line 
basis over the estimated useful economic life of the 
component as detailed in the accounting policy 27.
 
Freehold land is not depreciated. 

Housing properties in the course of construction 
are stated at cost and are transferred to housing 
properties held for letting when completed. 
Development costs which arise directly 
from the construction or acquisition of a property 
are capitalised to housing properties in the course of 
construction.

(4) Social Housing Grant and other 
capital grants

Social Housing Grant (SHG) can be recycled by the 
Registered Provider under certain conditions, if a 
property is sold, or if another relevant event takes 
place. In these cases, the SHG can be used for 
projects approved by Homes England. However, SHG 
may have to be repaid if certain conditions are not 
met.

The net SHG received and not spent is included in 
current liabilities, taking into account all properties 
under construction. SHG allocated to lease properties 
is included in current liabilities and amortised over the 
lease term.

In certain circumstances, SHG may be repayable, and, 
in that event, is a subordinated unsecured repayable 
debt. Other capital grants are also repayable under 
certain conditions and may be secured by first legal 
charge on the housing property.

Social housing grants received in the year are 
recognised in current and non-current liabilities based 
on the accrual model, and are amortised over their 
useful life which is generally 80 years unless specific 
conditions apply.

(5) Capitalisation of interest 
and development overheads

Interest is capitalised on loans financing schemes in 
development up to the point of practical completion. 
This is calculated by reference to the Group’s cost 
of borrowing and relevant development costs. 
Administration costs relating to development activities 
are capitalised based on an apportionment of the 
support costs directly incurred on this activity.

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1. Accounting policies continued
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(6) Other tangible fixed assets and 
depreciation 

Other tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided on 
a straight line basis, at rates considered appropriate to 
write off the assets over their effective working lives as 
detailed in the accounting judgements narrative.

• Fixtures and Fittings  Straight Line Basis over 
 3-10 years.
• Commercial properties  Straight Line Basis over 
 30 years.
• TEC Equipment        Straight Line Basis over 
 3-5.
• Computer Equipment   Straight Line Basis over 
 3 years. 

(7) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties which are held 
either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation 
or for both. Investment properties are recognised 
initially at cost. 

All investment properties were measured reliably in the 
year without undue cost or effort and therefore are held 
at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes 
in the fair value are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income in the period that they arise. 

No depreciation is provided in respect of investment 
properties applying the fair value model. This treatment, 
as regards the Group’s investment properties, may be 
a departure from the requirements of the Companies 
Act concerning depreciation of fixed assets. However, 
these properties are not held for consumption but for 
investment and the Board consider that systematic 
annual depreciation would be inappropriate. The 
accounting policy adopted is therefore necessary for 
the financial statements to give a true and fair view. 
Depreciation is only one of the many factors reflected 
in the annual valuation and the amount which might 
otherwise have been shown cannot be separately 
identified or quantified. 

The directors review the investment portfolio every 
year and for 2019/20 a formal valuation has been 
obtained for the properties which have been acquired 
during the year. 

(8) Pension scheme accounting

The Group participates in Lancashire County Council’s 
Superannuation Fund and the Social Housing Pension 
Scheme defined benefit schemes. For current service, 
mandatory contributions to the defined benefit 
pension schemes are calculated as a percentage 
of pensionable salaries of employees, determined 
in accordance with actuarial advice. The cost of 
providing pensions is charged to the period over 
which the Group benefits from the employee’s service, 
in accordance with FRS102. 

The valuation of defined benefit pension scheme 
obligations has a number of critical underlying 
assumptions are made when measuring a defined 
benefit scheme, including standard rates of inflation, 
mortality, discount rates and anticipation of future 
salaries. 

Variation in these assumptions may significantly 
impact the net asset/liability and the annual expense. 

Both schemes assumptions and calculations are 
based on independent actuarial reviews. The Directors 
are satisfied that these assumptions are appropriate.

(9) Major repairs and improvements

Expenditure incurred relating to improvements, 
defined as an increase in the net rental stream or 
the life of a property in the SORP, are capitalised as 
components. The carrying amount of components 
replaced is written off to operating expenditure.

Expenditure incurred on other major repairs, cyclical 
and day-to-day repairs to housing properties is 
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
in the period in which it is incurred.

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1. Accounting policies continued
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(10) Taxation

The Group is liable to United Kingdom Corporation Tax. 
Where applicable, taxation is provided for at the rates 
prevailing at the Statement of Financial Position date 
and comprises of current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on 
the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the Statement 
of Financial Position date, and any adjustment to tax 
payable in respect of previous years.

Provision is made for deferred tax in respect of timing 
differences that have originated but not reversed at the 
Statement of Financial Position date where an event 
has occurred that results in an obligation to pay more 
or less tax in future. Deferred tax is measured at the 
average tax rates that are expected to reverse, based 
on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent 
that it is more likely than not that there will be suitable 
taxable profits from which the future reversal of the 
underlying timing differences can be deducted. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

(11) Value Added Tax

The Group is registered for VAT. A large proportion of 
its income, including rents, is exempt from VAT. Most 
of its expenditure is therefore subject to VAT which 
cannot be reclaimed and expenditure is therefore 
shown inclusive of VAT. Any VAT recovered under 
the partial exemption calculation is credited to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(12) Stock

Stock represents the share of unsold completed 
shared ownership properties, van stock and work in 
progress on development of Concert Living Limited. 

(13) Bad and doubtful debts

The Group provides against rent arrears of current and 
former tenants and other trade debtors to the extent 
that they are considered to be irrecoverable. 

(14) Operating leases

Rental payments on operating leases are charged 
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(15) Interest and finance costs

Interest, agency fees, non-utilisation fees and 
consent fees are expensed within the financial year. 
Amortisation relates to loan arrangement fees which 
are written off over the period of the loan detailed 
further in accounting policy note 16 below. 

Interest is capitalised on loans financing schemes in 
the course of development as explained in accounting 
policy note 5.

Also included within finance costs is interest in respect 
of the defined benefit pension schemes. A pension 
interest charge is included in respect of scheme 
liabilities. 

(16) Housing loans

Housing loans are classified as creditors and are held 
at amortised cost using the effective rate of interest.

(17) Service charges and sinking funds

The Group operates both fixed and variable service 
charges on a scheme by scheme basis in line with 
tenancy and lease agreements.

Where variable service charges are used the charges 
will include an allowance for the surplus or deficit 
from prior years, with the surplus being returned to 

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1. Accounting policies continued
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residents by a reduced charge and a deficit being 
recovered by a higher charge. Until these are returned 
they are held as debtors or creditors on the Statement 
of Financial Position.

Where periodic expenditure is required a provision 
may be built up over the years, in consultation with 
the residents. Until these costs are incurred this 
liability is held on the Statement of Financial Position 
within creditors. A separate bank account is used to 
hold these funds separately from the Group’s bank 
accounts.

(18) First tranche shared ownership 
sales

The Group has adopted the accounting treatment in 
the SORP 2014 such that:

 Shared ownership properties are split 
proportionally between current and fixed assets 
based on the first tranche proportion;

 First tranche proportions are accounted for as 
current assets and the related sales proceeds 
shown in turnover; and

 The remaining element of the SO property 
is accounted for as a fixed asset so that any 
subsequent sale is treated as a part disposal of a 
fixed asset.

(19) Designated reserves

The designated reserves are in respect of Key 
Unlocking Futures Limited, a charitable subsidiary. Key 
works with young people to provide support for young 
people who are homeless or at risk of becoming 
homeless. The designated funds cover redundancy, 
sickness and running costs for a level of three to six 
months in accordance with the reserve policy.

(20) Properties managed on behalf of 
others

All income and expenditure relating to the management 
of properties for other agencies is included in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. The assets and 
liabilities relating to this income and expenditure are 
included in the Statement of Financial Position.

(21) Properties managed by agents

Where the Group carries the majority of the financial 
risk on property managed by agents, all the income 
and expenditure arising from the property is included 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Where 
the agency carries the majority of the financial risk, the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income includes only 
that income and expenditure which relates solely to the 
Group.

In both cases, the assets and associated liabilities are 
included in the Statement of Financial Position.

(22) Supporting People

This income includes Supporting People (SP) contract 
income received from Administering Authorities, 
plus support charges to individual tenants. When 
accounted for as part of rent, the income is shown 
as “charges for support services” in income from 
Social Housing Lettings. The related costs are shown 
as “support” expenditure in expenditure from Social 
Housing Lettings.

If the charges to individuals are not dealt with as part 
of rent, the income and related costs are shown as 
“other supporting people income” in Other Social 
Housing Activities.

SP contract income received from Administering 
Authorities and not dealt with as part of the rent, is 
shown as “Supporting People contract income” in 
Other Social Housing Activities.

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1. Accounting policies continued
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(23) Impairment of fixed assets

Properties held for their social benefit are not held 
solely for the cash inflows they generate and are held 
for their service potential. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to 
whether an indicator of impairment exists. If such an 
indicator exists, an impairment assessment is carried 
out and an estimate of the recoverable amount of 
the asset is made. Where the carrying amount of the 
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment 
loss is recognised in surplus or deficit in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income. The recoverable amount 
of an asset is the higher of its value in use and fair 
value less costs to sell. Where assets are held for their 
service potential, value in use is determined by the 
present value of the asset’s remaining service potential 
plus the net amount expected to be received from its 
disposal. Depreciated replacement cost is taken as a 
suitable measurement model.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reasons for the 
impairment loss have ceased to apply and included in 
surplus or deficit in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income.

The Group estimated the recoverable amount of its 
housing properties and identified 3 further impairments 
as a result of annual impairment review (2019: 3)

If an indication of impairment was identified, then the 
process consisted of reviewing the net book value 
against a number of factors, ranging from open 
market value, replacement cost and the net present 
value of all future cashflow associated with the asset 
in order to determine the net present value.

Following a review of all assets, with the exception 
of the 3 properties identified above, there were no 
further instances identified where the net book value 
was greater than the recoverable value, and therefore, 
there was no impairment adjustments required in 
addition to those that had already been provided in 
the year. For those 3 properties identified, the assets 
were impaired down to their recoverable value.

(24) Joint Venture accounting

The Group includes a third share of Leeds 
Independent Living Accommodation Company 
Holdings Limited (LiLAC), which is a joint venture 
contracted through a PFI arrangement. To account for 
this, liabilities are recognised as an investment balance 
in the accounts of Progress Housing Association Limited 
and a third share of LiLAC’s assets and liabilities in the 
Group consolidated Financial Statements.

The LiLAC PFI company is the fixed interest rate payer 
of free-standing interest rate swap. Due to falls in 
variable interest rates, that swap is ‘out of the money’ 
for Lilac Holdings, so the fair value of the swap is 
a liability. The Group recognises a liability being the 
difference between its investment in Lilac and its share 
of the fair value of its share of the liability on the swap.

(25) Service concession arrangements

The Group elected to take the ‘first time adopter’ 
exemption permitted by para 35.10(i) of FRS 102 
to continue to account for Service Concession 
Arrangements that were in existence at the date 
of transition, under the pre 1 April 2014 UK GAAP 
methodology.

(26) Financial instruments

The Group’s loan facilities have been assessed as 
basic financial instruments and have been treated as 
such as outlined in FRS 102 section 11. 

Notes to the financial statements continued
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(27) Depreciation of housing properties
- components

Components of housing properties are depreciated 
over their useful economic lives, determined by the 
length of time the individual component will be used 
before it is replaced. They are depreciated on a 
straight line basis over the estimated useful economic 
life of the component at the following rates:

Structure  shorter of 80 years or the  
 remaining length of the lease
Kitchen  10-20 years 
Bathrooms  15-30 years 
Boilers  15 years
Heating systems 30 years
Windows and doors 30 years
Lifts  25 years
Photo Voltaic Installations 25 years

The useful lives were originally determined by 
reviewing stock condition survey data and component 
replacement cycles, and also through regular 
benchmarking of the industry. 

(28) Significant judgements and
estimates

In preparing these Financial Statements, the key 
judgements have been made in respect of the following:

 Whether there are indicators of impairment of 
the Group’s tangible assets. Factors taken into 
consideration in reaching such a decision include 
the economic viability and expected future 
financial performance of the asset, and where it 
is a component of a larger cash-generating unit, 
the viability and expected future performance 
of that unit. The members have considered the 
measurement basis to determine the recoverable 
amount of assets where there are indicators of 
impairment based on EUV-SH or depreciated 
replacement cost. The members have also 
considered impairment based on their assumptions 
to define cash or asset generating units.

 The anticipated costs to complete on a 
development scheme are based on anticipated 
construction cost, effective rate of interest on 
loans during the construction period, legal costs 
and other costs. Based on the costs to complete, 
they then determine the recoverability of the cost 
of properties developed for outright sale and/or 
land held for sale. This judgement is also based 
on the member’s best estimate of sales value 
based on economic conditions within the area of 
development.

 The critical underlying assumptions in relation 
to the estimate of the pension defined benefit 
scheme obligation, such as standard rates of 
inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipated 
future salary increases. Variations in these 
assumptions have the ability to significantly 
influence the value of the liability recorded and 
annual defined benefit expense.

 Whether leases entered into by the Group either 
as a lessor or a lessee are operating leases or 
finance leases. These decisions depend on an 
assessment of whether the risks and rewards of 
ownership have been transferred from the lessor 
to the lessee on a lease by lease basis.

 The appropriate allocation of costs for mixed 
tenure developments, and furthermore the 
allocation of costs relating to shared ownership 
between current and fixed assets.

Other	key	sources	of	estimation	and	
assumptions

 Tangible Fixed Assets, other than investment 
properties, are depreciated over their useful 
lives taking into account residual values, where 
appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and 
residual values assessed annually and may vary 
depending on a number of factors. Residual value 
assessments consider issues such as future 
market conditions, the remaining life of the asset 
and projected disposal values.

 For housing property assets, the assets are broken 
down into components based on management’s 
assessment of the properties. Individual useful 
economic lives are assigned to these components.

Notes to the financial statements continued
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2020

Group	Consolidated Turnover Cost	of	
sales

Operating	
expenditure

Operating	
surplus/	
(deficit)

£'000 £’000 £'000 £'000

Social	Housing	Lettings	(note	3a) 67,750  - (51,944) 15,806 

Other	social	housing	activities	(note	3b)
Supporting people 415  - (541) (126)

Development	for	sale

First tranche shared ownership sales 1,329 (1,054)  - 275 

Non-social	housing	activities	(note	3c)

Lettings 3,945  - (3,192) 753 

Other 6,453  - (6,241) 212 

79,892	 (1,054) (61,918) 16,920	

Gain	on	disposal	of	property,	plant	
and	equipment	(note	6)

     
167

Total 17,087

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment accounted for in accordance with the 2018 updated Statement of 
Recommended Practice (SORP).

2019

Turnover Cost	of	
sales

Operating	
expenditure

Operating	
surplus

£'000 £’000 £'000 £'000

Social	housing	lettings	(note	3a) 66,032  - (50,173) 15,859 

Other	social	housing	activities	(note	3b)
Supporting People 540  - (526) 14 

Development	for	sale

First tranche shared ownership sales 1,980 (1,408)  - 572 

Non-social	housing	activities	(note	3c)

Lettings 3,933  - (2,371) 1,562 

Other 5,466  - (4,676) 790 

Total 77,951	 (1,408) (57,746) 18,797	

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020

2 Turnover, operating expenditure and operating surpluses
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				2020

Company Turnover Operating	
expenditure

Operating	
surplus/(deficit)

£'000 £'000 £'000

Non-social	housing	activities	(note	3c)
Other 10,259 (10,000) 259 

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (note 6) - - (16)

Total 10,259	 (10,000) 243	

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment accounted for in accordance with the 2018 updated Statement of 
Recommended Practice (SORP).

				2019

Turnover Operating	
expenditure

Operating	
surplus/(deficit)

£'000 £'000 £'000

Non-social	housing	activities	(note	3c)

Lettings 5 (65) (60)

Other 9,708 (9,089) 619 

Total 9,713	 (9,154) 559	

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020

2. Turnover, operating expenditure and operating surpluses 
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3(a) Income and expenditure from social housing lettings 
Group	Consolidated General	

needs
Housing	
for	older	

people

Supported	
housing

Shared	
ownership

Total	
2020

Total	
2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income

Rent receivable net of identifiable service charges 22,332 5,196 29,049 538 57,115 56,096 

Service charge income 583 1,447 5,983 49 8,062 7,367 

Charges for support services  - 283  -  - 283 268 

Amortised government grants 141  - 20  - 161 135 

Void guarantee and revenue grants 10  - 1,579  - 1,589 1,627 

Other income 160 28 352  - 540 539 

Turnover	from	social	housing	lettings 23,226	 6,954	 36,983	 587	 67,750	 66,032	

Expenditure

Management (3,598) (702) (5,224) (80) (9,604) (11,361)

Service charge costs and support (691) (1,680) (6,563) (37) (8,971) (8,866)

Routine maintenance (4,422) (1,122) (5,546) (21) (11,111) (10,801)

Planned maintenance (1,155) (361) (1,108) (7) (2,631) (2,579)

Major repairs expenditure (1,623) (964) (2,136) (21) (4,744) (3,537)

Bad debts (133) (1) (54) (6) (194) 44 

Property operating lease charges  -  - (3,362)  - (3,362) (3,612)

Depreciation of housing properties (4,138) (934) (3,019) (87) (8,178) (7,791)

Impairment of housing properties  - - (399)  - (399) (58)

Other costs (746) (167) (1,836) (1) (2,750) (1,612)

Operating	costs	on	social	housing	lettings (16,506) (5,931) (29,247) (260) (51,944) (50,173)

Operating	surplus	on	lettings	activities 6,720	 1,023	 7,736	 327	 15,806	 15,859	

Void losses (included within turnover) (180) (64) (3,582)  - (3,826) (3,424)

A number of the void losses above are subject to agreements where the Group is compensated for its losses.
These void guarantees, which are not included in the void losses above, are chargeable to third parties in the year and 
totalled £1.6m (2019: £1.5m).

Impairment charges include impairment of previously revalued housing properties. There is a transfer from revaluation 
reserves of £0.1m (2019: £0.1m) which appears as a credit in the Statement of Changes in Reserves. The impairment 
on a historic cost basis is £0.3m (2019: £0.1m).

 

Notes to the financial statements continued
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3(b) Turnover from other social housing activities
Group Group

2020 2019

Other £'000 £'000

Supporting people 415 540 

Total 415	 540	

3(c) Turnover from non-social housing activities
Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Lettings

Key worker accommodation 3,846 3,761  -  - 

Other rented 52 62  - 5 

Commercial properties 47 110  -  - 

3,945 3,933  - 5 

Other

Progress Lifeline services 5,337 4,370  -  - 

Support service for young people 672 614  -  - 

Property Services provided to other group companies  -  -  - 1,054 

Corporate services provided to other group companies  -  - 10,049 8,407 

Lease income 287 281  -  - 

Development for outright sale 31  -  -  - 

Other 126 201 210 247 

6,453	 5,466	 10,259	 9,708	

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020
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Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020

4. Accommodation in management

Group	Consolidated

General	
needs	-	

social	rent	

No.

General	
needs	-	

affordable	
rent	
No.

Low	cost	
home	

ownership	

No.

Supported	
housing	

No.

Inter-
mediate	

rent	

No.

Other	

No.

Total	

No.

Opening	unit	numbers 4,224	 550	 163	 4,481	 54	 780	 10,252	

New stock acquired 11 85 15 23 - - 134 

New stock into management - - - - - - -

Sales to open market - - -  (20) - -  (20)

Sales to tenants freehold  (8) -  (1) - - -  (9)

Other losses - - -  (63) - -  (63)

Movement within categories 16 2  (2) (17) - 2  1

Net	change	to	stock 19	 87	 12	 	(77) - 2	 43	

Closing	units	numbers 4,243	 637	 175	 4,404	 54	 782	 10,295	

Supported housing units represent the number of tenancies, rather than the number of properties, as some properties 
are shared by up to four tenants.
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5. Surplus for the year

Group Company

2020	
£’000

2019	
£’000

2020	
£’000

2019	
£’000

Is stated after charging:
Auditor’s remuneration (excluding VAT)

In their capacity as auditors 45 29 16 8 

In respect of other services 9 3 6  - 

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

- Housing properties 8,998 8,605  -  - 

- Other fixed assets 1,130 1,098 880 887 

Impairment of tangible fixed assets

   - Impairment of housing properties 399 58  -  - 

   - Impairment on previously revalued amounts 116 108  -  - 

   - Impairment / (reversal) on historic cost basis 283 (50)  -  - 

   - Reversal of impairment of offices  - (37)  -  - 

Included within impairment of housing properties above:

- Reversal of impairment of housing properties (79) (124)  -  - 

Hire of other assets - operating leases

- Housing properties 3,362 3,613  -  - 

- Other fixed assets vehicles 707 661 - - 

6. Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Group Company

2020	
£’000

2019	
£’000

2020	
£’000

2019	
£’000

Sale proceeds 2,205 3,288  - 474 

Cost of disposals (1,928) (2,550) (16) (476)

Operating costs associated with sales (110) (86) - (22)

Gain/(loss) on disposals 167 652 (16) (24)

Impairment charges of £0.2m (2019: £1.6m) have been accounted for in current and prior years on housing properties 
disposed of in the year.

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020
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7. Interest receivable
Group Company

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

Bank interest receivable 31 30 8 4 

Interest receivable from group companies  -  - 63 23 

Interest on loan to joint venture company 212 216  -  - 

243 246 71 27 

8. Interest and financing costs
Group Company

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

On bank loans:

  Repaid during the year 227 102  -  - 

  Repayable within 1 year 239 287  -  - 

  Repayable within 1 & 2 years 251 305  -  - 

  Repayable within 2 & 5 years 2,021 1,900  -  - 

  Repayable wholly or partly in more than 5 years 5,692 6,618  -  - 

Amortisation of loan issue costs 55 52  -  - 

Pension scheme finance costs 258 339 119 141 

Loan remeasurement (657) (552)  -  - 

Financing costs  - (9)  -  - 

8,086 9,042 119 141 

Less : Interest capitalised (174) (95)  -  - 

7,912 8,947 119 141 

Interest has been capitalised at an average of 5% in the year (2019: 3.94%).

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020
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9. Taxation on surplus on ordinary activities
(a)	Analysis	of	the	charge	in	the	period

The tax charge on the surplus on ordinary activities for the year was as follows:

Group Company

2020
£’000

2019	
£’000

2020
£’000

2019	
£’000

Current tax:

UK corporation tax charge for the year 2 123 59 168 

Total	current	tax 2 123	 59 168	

Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of timing differences 51 (31) 52 (31)

Tax on surplus on ordinary activities 53	 92	 111	 137	

(b)	Factors	affecting	tax	charge	for	the	period

Surplus on ordinary activities before tax 9,384 10,878	 195	 412	

Surplus on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate

of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2019: 19%) 1,783 2,067 37 77 

Effects of:

(Profits) arising in charitable activities (1,803) (2,035)  -  - 

Items not allowable for tax purposes 74 6 74 6 

Other timing differences - 11 - 11 

Employers pension contributions - 41 - 41 

Movement in fair value of housing properties - 2 - 2 

Effect of differences in current and future tax rates -  - -  - 

Adjustments in respect of prior periods -  - -  - 

53	 92	 111	 137	

(c)	Factors	that	may	affect	future	tax	charges

A deferred tax liability has been recognised on the Group’s fixed assets, primarily IT assets, pensions,
and other temporary timing differences including provisions.       

Deferred tax has been calculated at the substantially enacted future rate of tax rate of 19%. 

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020
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10. Tangible fixed assets - Housing properties
Housing	

properties	
completed

Housing	
properties	

under	
construction

Shared	
ownership
completed

Shared	
ownership

under	
construction

Total	

Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost

At 1 April 2019 608,244 250 8,931 24 617,449 

Additions 6,122 12,518 178 4,354 23,172 

Transferred on completion 4,769 (4,769) 1,057 (1,057)  - 

Transferred to General Needs 166 - (166) -  - 

Disposals (3,727) - (46) - (3,773)

As	at	31	March	2020 615,574	 7,999	 9,954	 3,321	 636,848	

Depreciation

At 1 April 2019 108,870  - 394  - 109,264 

Charge for the year 8,667 - 87 - 8,754 

Transferred to general needs 5 - (5) -  - 

Depreciation on disposals (1,417) - (2) - (1,419)

Impairment charge for the year 399 - - - 399 

Impairment released on disposals (197) - - - (197)

As	at	31	March	2020 116,327 	-	 474	 	-	 116,801	

NBV

As at 1 April 2019 499,374 250 8,537 24 508,185 

As	at	31	March	2020 499,247 7,999	 9,480	 3,321	 520,047	

The value of secured properties (including those charged to third parties) is £409.2m (2019: £406.3m).

Completed Housing properties above include key worker accommodation with a net book value of £21.2m (2019: 
£21.9m). These properties are not considered to be social housing properties and the related rental income is 
presented as ‘non-social housing income’ as the rent is set at a market rate. They are not however investment 
properties as the nature of the key worker arrangement means that this still fits the definition of social benefit, and it is 
therefore appropriate to account for these assets at historic cost. 

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020
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10. Tangible fixed assets - housing properties continued

The above cost in respect of housing properties completed comprises:

Housing	properties
completed

Shared	ownership	
completed

2020
£’000

2019	
£’000

2020
£’000

2019	
£’000

Freehold properties 445,742 442,644 8,764 7,814 
Long-leasehold properties 53,505 56,730 716 723 
Total 499,247	 499,374	 9,480	 8,537	

2020
£’000

2019	
£’000

Most recent Existing Use Value for Social Housing 
(EUV-SH) at March 20 (2019: March 14) 

586,578 520,902

The above EUV-SH valuation figure as at March 20, includes key worker accommodation at £30.1m (2019: £25.6m).

Capital additions include £174k (2019: £93k) of interest capitalised at 5% in the year. Property costs include an 
apportionment of development staff time directly spent on the administration of development activities amounting to 
£383k (2019: £325k) and on in-house legal costs amounting to £36k (2019: £30k).    

Major	repairs,	renewals	and	improvements
2020
£’000

2019	
£’000

Capitalised components 6,153 5,195 
Charged to Revenue 4,845 3,628 

Total	major	repairs	revenue	and	capital 10,998 8,823	

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020
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11. Tangible fixed assets - Other
Group	Consolidated Commercial	and	

office	properties

Leasehold Freehold Fixtures	&
fittings

Computer	
hardware

and	software

Investment	
properties
completed

Investment	
properties	in
development

Total

£’000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost	or	Valuation
At 1 April 2019 1,225 1,941 1,795 5,321 695 1,094 12,071 
Additions  - 30 408 710  - 586 1,734 
Transfer to completed  -  -  -  - 1,680 (1,680)  - 
Disposals  -  -  - (254)  -  - (254)
Movement in fair value - - - - (155) - (155)

At	31	March	2020 1,225	 1,971	 2,203	 5,777	 2,220	 	-	 13,396	

Depreciation
At 1 April 2019 673 599 1,058 3,212  -  - 5,542 
Charge for the year 49 49 237 794  -  - 1,129 
Depreciation on disposals  -  -  - (238)  -  - (238)

At	31	March	2020 722	 648	 1,295	 3,768	 	-	 	-	 6,433	

Net	Book	Value
At 1 April 2019 552 1,342 737 2,109 695 1,094 6,529 

At	31	March	2020 503	 1,323	 908	 2,009	 2,220	 	-	 6,963	

Company Other	
equipment

Office	
properties

Fixtures	&
fittings

Computer	
hardware

and	software

Investment	
properties

Investment	
properties	in	
development

Total

£’000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost	or	valuation
At 1 April 2019 280 1,138 136 5,313  -  - 6,867 
Additions  - 30 92 710  -  - 832 
Disposals  -  -  - (254)  -  - (254)

At	31	March	2020 280	 1,168	 228	 5,769	 	-	 	-	 7,445	

Depreciation
At 1 April 2019 201 274 129 3,208  -  - 3,812 
Charge for the year 56 23 8 793  -  - 880 
Depreciation on disposals  -  -  - (238)  -  - (238)

At	31	March	2020 257	 297	 137	 3,763	 	-	 	-	 4,454	

Net	Book	Value
At 1 April 2019 79 864 7 2,105  -  - 3,055 

At	31	March	2020 23	 871	 91	 2,006	 	-	 	-	 2,991	

Group	and	Company 
Commercial and office properties, fixtures and fittings, computer hardware and software and other equipment are held at cost less accumulated 
depreciation.

The brought forward investment properties were valued in March 2018. The investment properties have been valued by Garside Waddingham 
(professional external valuers). The investment properties acquired in the year were valued in June 2020 by Parkinson Real Estate (professional 
external valuers). The valuations were undertaken in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institute of Chartered 
Surveyors. This involved the assessment of the market conditions, movement in market values in similar geographical areas and similar build and 
structure. The open market value is the estimated amount for which a property buyer and a willing seller in an arms-length transaction after proper 
marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion. 

As a result the carrying value of the investment properties valued in June 2020 was reduced and an amount of £155k was written off, this can be 
seen on the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Notes to the financial statements continued
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12. Fixed asset investments Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Investments in subsidiaries  -  - 500  - 

	-	 	-	 500	 	-	

Share issue to Concert Living Limited May 2019.

13. Investment in ordinary shares of joint venture
	

Group 2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Share	of	net	liabilities (3,863) (3,774)

Subordinated	debt	loaned	to	joint	venture	company 1,742 1,778 

Provision	for	share	of	liabilities (2,121) (1,996)

Share	of	profit	on	ordinary	activities	after	tax 121	 139	

Share	of	other	comprehensive	(loss)/income (122) 589

Progress Housing Association Ltd holds 33.3% (£333) of the equity share capital of Leeds Independent Living Accommodation 
(Holdings) Limited a Private Finance Initiative commissioned by Leeds City Council to fund the reprovision of accommodation for 
independent living. This is a joint venture with two other shareholders, Civic PFI Investments Limited and Jack Lunn (Properties) Ltd, 
each holding 33.3% of the equity share capital. 

The Lilac PFI company is the fixed interest rate payer of free-standing interest rate swap. Due to falls in variable interest rates, that 
swap is ‘out of the money’ for Lilac Holdings, so the fair value of the swap is a liability. As a result the Group has recognised a 
liability for the difference between its investment in Lilac and its share of the fair value of the liability on the swap.

14. Stock Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Property Services - van stock 121 130  -  - 

Completed shared ownership properties held for sale 712 891  -  - 

Land and work in progress on properties for sale 2,040 459  -  - 

2,873	 1,480	 	-	 	-	
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15. Debtors Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Amounts	falling	due	within	one	year:

Rent and service charge arrears 3,686 3,107 7 8 

Less provision for rental bad debts (1,217) (1,125) (7) (8)

2,469 1,982 -	 -	

Trade debtors 3,209 1,724 1 4 

Amounts owed by group companies  -  - 501 388 

Loans owed by group companies  -  - 1,921 603 
Prepayments and accrued income 2,790 1,964 705 636 
Less provision for sundry bad debts (144) (144) (2) (4)
Other debtors 41  -  -  - 
Corporation tax 34  - 34  - 

5,930	 3,544	 3,160 1,627	

Total debtors excluding deferred tax: 8,399	 5,526	 3,160	 1,627	

Deferred	tax:
Deferred tax - Pension asset 635 835 635 835 
Deferred tax - Fixed asset and other timing differences (118) (66) (188)  (66)

Total	debtors 8,916	 6,295	 3,667	 2,396	

16. Current asset investments Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Deposits held in trust for leasehold schemes 238 228  -  - 

238	 228	 - 	-	
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17. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Notes Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Loans 18	 6,913 7,327  -  - 

Obligations under finance leases 18	 23 56 23 56 

Rent and service charge received in advance 1,283 1,127  - 2 

Trade creditors 1,166 1,577 358 113 

Accruals and deferred income 5,694 4,605 569 228 

Government grants relating to assets 18	 188 150  -  - 

Corporation tax  - 55  - 38 

Other current liabilities 234 510 167 195 

Employer liabilities 565 537 194 171 

Sinking funds 260 236  -  - 

Grants repayable 176 176  -  - 

Loan remeasurement 18 501 465  -  - 

17,004	 16,821	 1,311	 803	

Sinking funds are deposits held in a separate interest bearing account for any planned maintenance required to leasehold 
properties, collected through service charges.
Standard payment terms are 30 days from date of invoice.

18. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Housing loans 229,880 225,000  -  - 

Housing loans remeasurement 2,487 3,180  -  - 

Obligations under finance leases  - 23  - 23 

232,367	 228,203	 	-	 23	

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020

DocuSign Envelope ID: 54685B5A-402C-4412-A81D-F124AFD1F9FA



Progress Housing Group Limited   Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

57

18. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year continued

Maturity	of	debt 																				Note																	Group	Loan

Bank and building society loans repayable in instalments as follows:- 				 								repayment

2020 2019

£’000 £'000

Within one year 17 6,913 7,327 

Between one and two years 7,268 7,788 

Between two and five years 58,486 48,590 

After five years 164,711 169,252 
230,465 225,630 

Less loan issue costs (585) (630)

Amounts falling due after more than one year 229,880 225,000 

Total	housing	loans 236,793	 232,327	

The company does not hold bank and building society loans or housing loans.

																	

Loan	Remeasurement 																		Note 		Group	Loan			
				remeasurement

2020 2019

£’000 £’000

As at 1 April 3,645 4,197 

Amortisation 8 (657) (552)

As	at	31	March 2,988	 3,645	
	 	

Due	within	one	year 17 501	 465	

Due	after	one	year 2,487	 3,180	

The loan remeasurement is amortised over the remaining 13 years.
Bank and building society loans are secured by fixed charges on the Groups’ assets. They include fixed and variable 
rate loans, at various rates, between 1.04% and 7.21%.
Reserves in the Statement of Financial Position include £94.8m (£81.2m at transition of FRS102 1 April 2014) of 
Financial Assistance and Government Grants. £0.6m has been recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
since transition to FRS102.
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18. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year continued

Obligations	under	finance	leases 	Note Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Computer hardware lease repayable in instalments 
as follows:

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Within one year  17	 23 56 23 56 

Between one and two years  - 23  - 23 

 - 23  - 23 

Total lease obligations 23	 79	 23	 79	

Government	grants	relating	to	housing	assets Group

Note 2020 2019

Deferred income - Government grants £'000 £'000

At 1 April 11,569 9,594 

Grants receivable 3,036 2,110 

Amortisation to Statement of Comprehensive 
Income

3 (161) (135)

2,875 1,975 

At	31	March	 14,444	 11,569	

Due	within	one	year 17 188	 150	

Due	after	one	year 14,256	 11,419	

Grants due after one year, includes £2.6m in respect of assets under construction (2019: £0.4m).
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19. Non-equity share capital

Group	Consolidated	and	Company 2020 2019

£ £

Allotted issued and fully paid:

At 1 April 11 8

Issued during the year 4 10

Surrendered during the year (2) (7)

At	31	March 13 11

The shareholders do not have a right to any dividend or distribution upon winding-up. Each shareholder has full voting 
rights and £1 non-equity shares.

20. Capital commitments
											Group

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Capital expenditure contracted but not provided for in the financial statements 15,242 5,053 

Capital expenditure that has been authorised by the Board 
of Directors but has not yet been contracted for

5,313 1,117 

20,555	 6,170	

											Group

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Progress Housing Group expects the commitments to be financed with:

Grants 435 417 

Committed loan facilities and free cash flow 20,120 5,753 

20,555	 6,170	

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020

DocuSign Envelope ID: 54685B5A-402C-4412-A81D-F124AFD1F9FA



Progress Housing Group Limited   Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

60

Commitments for payables and receivables in relation to non-cancellable operating leases are analysed below: 

									Group
								Housing	properties

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Leased	from	external	bodies

Less than 1 year 2,643 2,896 

Within 2-5 years 3,076 722 

More than 5 years 659 819 

6,378	 4,437	

								Group
								Housing	properties

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Leased	to	external	bodies

Less than 1 year 448 414 

Within 2-5 years 516 549 

More than 5 years 374 300 

1,338	 1,263	

								Group
								Other	leases

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Leased	from	external	bodies

Less than 1 year 409 588 

Within 2-5 years  - 420 

409	 1,008	
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21. Emoluments of the board and the directors

Analysis	of	non-executive	director	emoluments 2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Non executives remuneration (including expenses £10k (2019 : £10k) 144 131 

The Group provides emoluments to non-executive directors. During the year there were no benefits, other than wages 
and salaries and refreshments as part of the normal course of business payable to non-executive directors. Details on 
individual board member remuneration can be obtained from the Group’s website.

Analysis	of	directors’	emoluments
2020 2019

£'000 £'000

The Directors of the Group are its members and the Executive Officers. 
All emoluments are contained in the Company.

Emoluments of the Group's Directors including pension contributions 486 468 

Emoluments of the Group's Directors excluding pension contributions 445 430 

Emoluments of the Chief Executive, who was the highest paid 194 186 

Director, excluding pension contributions

The Group Chief Executive was an ordinary member of a pension scheme until 31 December 2016, and no enhanced 
or special terms applied. There are no other individual pension arrangements to which the Group makes a contribution 
on behalf of the Group Chief Executive.
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22. Employee information
Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

No. No. No. No.

The average number of full time equivalent persons 
employed during the year was:

Office staff 413 381 101 103 

Staff providing tenant services 19 18 1  - 

Maintenance 89 92  - 8 

521	 491	 102	 111	

Full time equivalents are calculated based on a standard working week of 36.25 hours for all employees except for 
39 hours for property services trades employees and 36.5 hours for Key Unlocking Futures Limited employees.  
 
 

Staff	costs	(for	the	above	persons) Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Wages & salaries 17,021 15,530 4,514 4,463 

Social security costs 1,517 1,468 456 483 

Other pension costs 1,225 1,106 387 382 

19,763	 18,104	 5,357	 5,328	

Group wages and salary cost includes £0.9m (2019: £0.04m) of restructuring costs.
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22. Employee information continued

Remuneration	bandings	for	all	employees	
earning	over	£60,000 									Group 							Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£60,000 - £70,000 5 6 3 1 

£70,001 - £80,000 5 1 1  - 

£80,001 - £90,000 1 3 1 3 

£90,001 - £100,000 5 3 4 2 

£100,001 - £110,000 2 1 2 1 

£110,001 - £120,000 1  - 1  - 

£120,001 - £130,000  - 1  - 1 

£130,001 - £140,000 1 1 1 1 

£140,001 - £150,000 1 1 1 1 

£150,001 - £160,000 1  - 1  - 

£180,001 - £190,000  - 1  - 1 

£190,001 - £200,000 1  - 1  - 

23	 18	 16	 11	

Remuneration for the above includes salaries, pension, bonuses, benefits in kind and compensation for loss of office. 
The remuneration bandings for employees earning over £60,000 includes the directors disclosed in note 21.

23. Cash flow statement notes

Group	Consolidated

Note
31	March	

2019 Cash	Flow

Other	
non	cash	
changes

31	March	
2020

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Analysis	of	net	debt

Cash in hand, at bank and overdrafts 8,119 1,273  - 9,392 

Current asset investments 16 228 10  - 238 

Obligations under finance leases 17 (79) 56 - (23)

Bank loans 18 (235,507) (3,797) 24 (239,280)

Total (227,239) (2,458) 24	 (229,673)

Other changes relate to amortisation of borrowing costs £24k (2019: £32k).
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24. Related party transactions

The Group adopted the National Housing Federation Model Rules in April 2016, which removed constituency group 
representation on its boards of management. Therefore at the end of the financial year there were no members of the 
boards who are tenants of the Group (2019: nil). The Group does not report any intercompany recharges under the 
exemption 33.1a of FRS 102. The membership of Concert Living Limited board by the Group Chief Executive and 
Executive Director (Finance & Corporate Services) does not amount to a disclosable related party transaction under 
clause 33.4 of FRS102.

During the year the Group had the following intra-group transactions with non-regulated entities: 

2020 2019

Purpose Subsidiary £’000 £’000

Recharge of service costs incurred in PHG on behalf of 
subsidiary companies. Includes IT consultancy, audit 
services and other advisory work – apportioned based 
on the work carried out 

Concert Living Ltd 61 84

Key Unlocking Futures Ltd 22 10

Critical tenancy support for PHA tenants Key Unlocking Futures Ltd 47

Employment coaching and support for tenants of PHA Key Unlocking Futures Ltd 58

Loan Concert Living Ltd 1,318 603

Interest on loan Concert Living Ltd 63 23

25. Parent undertakings and Group transactions

The Group comprises the following bodies 
which are 100% wholly owned subsidiaries:

No of 
shares held

Principal activity

Progress Housing Group Limited N/A
Provision of corporate services and 
development   

Progress Housing Association Limited 1 

Provision of Social Housing, Supported 
Housing, Key Worker accommodation, 
property maintenance and Lifeline & 
Technology Enabled Care Services 

Key Unlocking Futures Limited N/A
Charitable Registered Provider, providing 
support for families and the homeless 

Concert Living Limited 500 Development of homes for outright sale

New Progress Housing Association Limited 
(Previously PHA (1) Limited and Progress Housing 
Association Limited)

N/A Dormant company

The Parent company has the ability to appoint and dismiss subsidiary directors.
Key Unlocking Futures Limited is incorporated as a company limited by guarantee without share capital incorporated 
under the Companies Act 2006 and is a registered charity under the Charities Act 2011.
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26. Pension obligations

The Group participates in two pension schemes, Lancashire County Council’s Superannuation Fund (LCC) and the 
Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS) administered by the Pensions Trust. The LGPS is a defined benefit scheme and 
SHPS has both defined benefit streams and defined contribution streams within its scheme, detailed regulations govern 
the rates of pension contribution by both employees and the Group. Benefits are normally in the form of a lump sum 
retirement grant plus an annual pension.

As a responsible employer, the Group’s strategy which includes Progress Housing Group as the parent is to proactively 
manage defined-benefit pension scheme deficits by taking the following steps, whilst ensuring the pension offered is 
competitive.

 Closing both its multi-employer, defined benefit pension schemes to new membership in 2009. Over the years 
membership has decreased from 206 employees in 2009 to 125 employees at the 31st March 2020 due to 
leavers and employees taking retirement.

 Closing LGPS Progress Care Housing Association scheme on 29 March 2018.
 Closing the Group’s final salary Social Housing Pension Scheme to further accrual in July 2019 and replacing with 

a career average revalued earnings scheme for the existing 29 employees. 
 Introducing a very popular salary exchange scheme for employees in SHPS.
 Increasing employer contributions beyond those actuarially assessed.
 Making additional lump sum payments to the Lancashire Local Government Pension scheme, where indicated by 

actuarial assessment.
 Introducing a defined contribution Auto Enrolment Scheme with SHPS in 2012 which is available to all new starters 

with contribution levels in line with the Governments set minimum contribution rates.
 Introducing a higher matched contribution SHPS Defined contribution scheme at 7.5% for both employee and 

employer contributions available to all staff.
 Re-enrolling all eligible employees not in a pension scheme every 3 years. In March 20, 30 employees were 

 re-rerolled whilst 10 chose to opt out.

For defined benefits LGPS Employer’s contributions are based on percentages of employees’ earnings as 
recommended by the actuary of the fund in their valuation.

The ability of the pension funds to provide statutory benefits is assessed every three years by an independent 
professionally qualified actuary, and employer’s contributions are reviewed in light of the actuary’s report.
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Pension	liabilities:
			Group		Company 			Group		Company

2020	 2020	 2019	 2019	

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Lancashire County Pension Fund 9,690 2,468 7,383 3,108 

Social Housing Pension Scheme 1,538 874 3,206 1,806 

11,228	 3,342	 10,589	 4,914	

Actuarial	Gains/(Losses):

Lancashire County Pension Fund (875) 1,126 3,237 693 

Social Housing Pension Scheme 1,511 824 (469) (216)

636	 1,950 2,768	 477	

In April 19 the Group utilised the method for determining sufficient information for full DB accounting to include the share 

of assets and liabilities on the balance sheet. This has led to de-recognition of the deficit funding contribution liability.

Initial	recognition	of	SHPS	multi-employer	benefit	scheme: Group Group Group Company

2020 2020 2019 2019

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Initial recognition of SHPS multi-employer benefit scheme - - 1,291 806 

Lancashire	County	pension	fund	
The most recent full actuarial valuation of the fund was as at 31 March 2019, the results of which were:

Valuation Method Projected Unit
Value of Assets  £8,410 million

The Group’s employers’ contributions to the fund during the year were 15.6% of pensionable salary in the year, and 
amounted to £187k. The following table details the numbers of staff who are members of the fund. On 29 March 2018, 
Progress Care Housing Association terminated its scheme and existing employees transferred to either New Progress 
Housing Association or Progress Housing Group. 
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		Employers’	

Contributions 										No.	Staff

2020 2019 2020 2019

£ £

Progress Housing Association 378 376 72 83 
Progress Housing Group 187 209 26 26 
Total Group 565 585 98 109 

Actuarial	Assumptions 2020 2019

Rate of CPI Inflation 2.10% 2.20%

Rate of Increase in Salaries 3.60% 3.70%

Rate of Increase in Pensions 2.20% 2.30%

Discount Rate 2.40% 2.50%

Asset	Information	-	Group

Market	
Value	at	

31	March	
2020

%	Split	
of	

Assets

Market	
Value	at	

31	March	
2019

%	Split	
of	

Assets

£’000 % £’000 %

Equities 26,636 53 22,217 44 

Government Bonds - - 1,764 4 

Other Bonds 1,257 2.5 605 1 

Property 4,272 8.5 4,686 9 

Cash/Liquidity 1,407 2.8 252 1 

Other (includes Credit funds, Overseas pooled & 
Private equity funds, Infrastructure)

16,686 33.2 20,857 41 

Total Market Value of Assets 50,258 100 50,381 100 

Present Value of Scheme Liabilities 59,948 57,764 

Net Pension Liability before tax asset (9,690) (7,383)

Deferred tax asset 635  835 

Net Pension Liability after tax asset (9,055) (6,548)

Group parent liability (2,468) (3,108)

Deferred tax asset  635  835 

(1,833) (2,273)
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The	following	disclosures	relate	to	the	Group	as	a	whole

Balance	Sheet	Items	as	at	31	March	2020
Group

2020
Company

2020
Group

2019
Company

2019
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Present Value of Funded Benefit Obligations 59,881 22,103 57,676 21,266 

Present Value of Unfunded Benefit Obligations 67  - 88  - 

Total Present Value of Benefit Obligations 59,948 21,103 57,764 21,266 

Fair Value of Plan Assets (50,258) (19,635) (50,381) (18,158)

Deficit	before	deferred	tax	asset 9,690	 2,468 7,383	 3,108	

Components	of	pension	cost	for	period	to	31	March	2020 2020	 2020 2019	 2019	

Current Service Cost 1,255 406 1,196 420 

Net Interest Cost 183 76 246 88 

Admin Expenses 21 7 19 7 

Past Service Cost  543  184  -  - 

Total	pension	cost	recognised	in	Income	&	Expenditure 2,002	 673	 1,461	 515	

Group
2020

Company
2020

Group
2019

Company
2019

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Statement	of	Recognised	Total	Recognised	

Surpluses	and	Deficits

Remeasurements (liabilities & assets) before 

deferred tax asset
875 (1,126) (3,237) (693)

Total	Remeasurements	included	in	Statement	
of	Comprehensive	Income

875	 (1,126) (3,237) (693)
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Changes	in	benefit	obligation	during	period	to	31	March	2020
Group

2020
Group

2020
Company

2020
Group

2019
Group

2019
Company

2019
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

unfunded	
Benefits

All	
Benefits

All	
Benefits

unfunded	
Benefits

All	
Benefits

All	
Benefits

Benefit Obligation at beginning of period 88 57,764 21,266 91 60,223 21,663 

Current Service Cost  - 1,255 406  - 1,196 420 

Interest on Pension Liabilities 3 1,440 529 2 1,558 561 

Member Contributions  - 271 109  - 275 117 

Past Service Costs  - 543 184  - - - 

Remeasurements (gain)/loss on assumptions (19) (20) 64 (2) (4,575) (1,187)

Transfer between other group companies  - (850) -  -  - - 

Benefits/transfers paid (5) (455) (455) (3) (913) (308)

Benefit Obligation at end of period 67 59,948 22,103 88 57,764 21,266 

Change	in	Plan	Assets	during	period	to	31	March	
Group	

2020
Group

2020
Company

2020
Group

2019
Group

2019
Company

2019
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

unfunded	
Benefits

All	
Benefits

All	
Benefits

unfunded	
Benefits

All	
Benefits

All	
Benefits

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period  - 50,381 18,158  - 50,479 18,168 
Interest on plan assets  - 1,257 453  - 1,312 473 
Remeasurements assets  - (895) 1,190  - (1,338) (494)
Admin expenses  - (21) (7)  - (19) (7)
Employer contributions 5 570 187 6 585 209 
Member contributions  - 271 109  - 275 117 
Benefits/transfers paid (5) (1,305) (455) (6) (913) (308)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period  - 50,258 19,635  - 50,381 18,158 

Deficit	before	deferred	tax	asset 67 9,690 2,468 88 7,383 3,108 

Actual Return on Plan Assets 2,351 156 5,760 2,075

Post	retirement	mortality	assumptions

Non-retired members  S2PA CMI_2018 [1.75%] 
(110% Males, 94% Females)  

S2PA CMI_2015 [1.5%]
 (98% Males, 89% Females

Retired members S2PA CMI_2018 [1.5%
(103% Males, 91% Females) 

S2PA CMI_2015 [1.5%]
(99% Males, 93% Females

Life	expectancy

of a male (female) future pensioner aged 65 in 20 years’ time 23.8 (26.8) years 25.1 (28.2) years

of a male (female) current pensioner aged 65 22.3 (25) years 22.8 (25.5) years

Market	value	of	total	fund	assets	(£	millions) 8,637 8,068
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SOCIAL	HOuSING	PENSION	SCHEME     

Present	Value	of	defined	benefit	obligation,	fair	value	of	assets	and	defined	benefit	asset	(Liability)

Group Company Group Company

31	March
2020	

31	March	
2020

31	March	
2019

31	March	
2019	

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Fair value of plan assets 9,349 5,353 8,933 5,160 

Present value of defined benefit obligation 10,887 6,227 12,139 6,966 

Total	defined	benefit	(liability)	to	be	recognised (1,538) (874) (3,206) (1,806) 

Reconciliation	of	opening	and	closing	balances	of	the	defined	benefit	obligation

Group Company

31	March	2020 31	March	2020

£’000 £’000

Defined benefit obligation at start of period 12,139 6,966 

Current service cost 236 93 

Expenses 12 6 

Interest expense 292 168 

Contributions by plan participants 36 15 

Actuarial losses (gains) due to scheme experience 191 128 

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to changes in demographic assumptions (101) (58)

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to changes in financial assumptions (1,753) (1,024)

Benefits paid and expenses (165) (67)

Defined	benefit	obligation	at	end	of	period 10,887	 6,227	
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Reconciliation	of	opening	and	closing	balances	of	the	fair	
value	of	plan	assets

Group Company

31	March	2020 31	March	2020

Fair value of plan assets at start of period 8,933 5,160 

Interest income 218 126 

Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in interest 
income) - gain (loss)

(152) (130)

Contributions by the employer 479 249 

Contributions by plan participants 36 15 

Benefits paid and expenses (165) (67)

Total	fair	value	of	plan	assets	at	end	of	period 9,349 5,353 

The actual return on the plan assets (including any changes in share of assets) over the period ended 31 March 2020 
was £64,000, (Company £4,000).

Notes to the financial statements continued
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DEFINED	BENEFIT	COSTS	RECOGNISED	IN	STATEMENT	OF	COMPREHENSIVE	INCOME	(SOCI)

Group Company

31	March	2020 31	March	2020

£’000 £’000

Current service cost  236  93 

Expenses  12  6 

Net interest expense  74  42 

Defined	benefit	costs	recognised	in	statement	of	
comprehensive	income	(SOCI)

	322	 	141	

Defined	benefit	costs	recognised	in	other	comprehensive	income	 	 	 	

Group Company

31	March	2020 31	March	2020

£’000 £’000

Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net 
interest cost) - gain (loss)

(152) (130)

Experience gains and losses arising on the plan liabilities - gain (loss) (191) (128)

Effects of changes in the demographic assumptions underlying the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation - gain (loss)

101 58 

Effects of changes in the financial assumptions underlying the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation - gain (loss)

1,753 1,024 

Total	amount	recognised	in	other	comprehensive	income	-	
gain	(loss)

1,511	 824	
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Assets
Group Company Group Company

31	March	
2020

31	March	
2020

31	March	
2019

31	March	
2019

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Global Equity  1,367  783  1,503  868 

Absolute Return  487  279  772  446 

Distressed Opportunities  180  103  163  94 

Credit Relative Value  257  147  163  94 

Alternative Risk Premia  653  374  516  298 

Fund of Hedge Funds  5  3  40  23 

Emerging Markets Debt  283  162  308  178 

Risk Sharing  316  181  270  156 

Insurance-Linked Securities  287  164  256  148 

Property  206  118  201  116 

Infrastructure  695  398  469  271 

Private Debt  189  108  120  69 

Opportunistic Illiquid Credit  227  130  -  - 

Corporate Bond Fund  533  305  417  241 

Liquid Credit  4  2  -  - 

Long Lease Property  162  93  131  76 

Secured Income  355  203  320  185 

Liability Driven Investment  3,103  1,777  3,267  1,887 

Net Current Assets  40  23  17  10 

Total	assets 	9,349	 	5,353	 	8,933	 	5,160	

None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any direct investments in the employer’s own financial 
instruments or any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the employer.

Key	assumptions

Group Company Group Company

31	March	
2020

31	March	
2020

31	March	
2019

31	March	
2019

%	per	
annum

%	per	
annum

%	per	
annum

%	per	
annum

Discount Rate 2.34% 2.32% 2.38% 2.40%

Inflation (RPI) 2.53% 2.48% 3.23% 3.20%

Inflation (CPI) 1.53% 1.48% 2.23% 2.20%

Salary Growth 2.53% 2.48% 3.23% 3.20%

Allowance for commutation of pension for cash at retirement  75% of 
maximum 
allowance 

 75% of 
maximum 
allowance 

Notes to the financial statements continued
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Key	assumptions	continued

The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 March 2020 imply the following life expectancies:   

Group Company

Life	expectancy	
at	age	65

Life	expectancy	
at	age	65

years years

Male retiring in 2020 21.5 21.8

Female retiring in 2020 23.3 23.5

Male retiring in 2040 22.9 23.2

Female retiring in 2040 24.5 24.7

Notes to the financial statements continued
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